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Centaur Media plc

Highlights

Financial

-

Adjusted EBITDA up 10% to £12 9m (2012 £11.7m)
Adjusted profit before tax up 8% to £6 6m (2012. £8 0m)

Reported loss before tax of £37 4m (2012 profit £2.7m) Includes a non-cash impairment charge of
£39 2m (2012 £nil)

Adjusted basic EPS up 7% to 4.5p (2012. 4 2p) with a proposed full year didend of 2.4p (up 7%}
Cash converslon remains strong at 112% (2012. 120%)

Operational

Reovenue mix continues to improve

o Digital contribution increased to 35%, pafd-for conltent 28% and events 36%

o Advertising revenues reduced as planned fo 35% of total revenues
Refocus around market segments driving greater focus on delivery of revenue and cost synergies
Acquisition of Econsultancy completed in July 2012 and infegration accelerating

Year to 30 Year to 30 Reported Underlying

June 2013 June 2012 Growth Growth ?
Yo %
Rewenue (Em) 720 656 10% (3%)
Adjusted EBITDA (£m) * 129 117 10% (2%}
Adjusted EBITDA margin 18% 18%
Adjusted profit before tax (Em) ' 886 80 8%
Reported (loss)/profit before tax (£m) (37 4) 27
Basic (LPS)EPS (pence) (27.3) 0e
Adjusted basic EPS (pence) ' 45 42 7%
Dudend per share {pence) 24 225 7%
Operating cash flow 96 103 (7%)
Cash conversion 2 112% 120%

Adfustad resulls excluda adusting ftems as detalled in tho Basis of Prepsration section of the Statement of Accounting
Policles (page 62)

Cash conversion rate Is operaling cash flow exprassed as a percentage of adjusted operaling profil. Adjusted operating
profit is as celculated In tho Basis of Freparation section of the Siatement of Accounting Policles (page 61) and operating
cash flow Is as calculaled in the Financlal Review (page 20}

Underlying growth rales adjust for the impect of acquisitions, disposals end disconlinued activilies by excluding them from
both the reporied 2013 and 2012 resulls

Reportad loss before tax of £37 4m (2012 profit of £2 7m) includes a non-cash impairment charge of £39 2m (2012 £nif)
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Centaur Media plc

Who we are and what we do
» Centaur Medla is an integrated business media group, providing business information, events and
marketing solutions to @ number of professional and commercial markels

s  Our market feading brands do this using the deep understanding of, and insight nto, the markets they
operate in, delivering sustainahle competitive advantage to our business customers and communilies

s+ We are constantly focused on providing the highest-quality, business-critical products and services, in
whatever farmat and at whatever frequency best suits our customers

+ the group has a focus on building high valus, renewable subscription services, dellvering essential business
information on rabust and modern digital platforms, with superior functionalty and user experience.

s Centaur Is a modern, digital, entrepreneurial business with a culture of innovation, collaboration, openness
and trust

»  Our people are passionate and proud of what they do, and work here because their contributions are valued
and their efforts are rewarded
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Centaur Media plc

Chairman’s Statement
Overview

| am pleased to be able to report results that show good profit growth, albeit at a slower rate than Initially
anticipated, in what have remained challenging economic conditions | am also happy to report stable trading In
the fast two months of the 2013 financial year. This reflacts improved conditions across those markets that
proved volatile for much of 2013, but also a sharper focus across the Group and with much greater emphasis on
the speed of change and delivery of results.

Adjusted EBITDA Increased by 10% to £12 9m (2012 £11 7m) Adjusted profit before tax Increased by 8% to
£8 6m (2011. £8.0m) with adjusted EPS up 7% to 4.5p (2012 4 2p)

While we have made significant progress in re-engineering the business over the last two years, the
management changes made in May 2013 reflect the need to accelerate the Group's delivery of our strategic
objectives These strategic objectives are to build market-leading positions in selected high growth markets, to
improve the quality of our revenue streams by growing revenues from digital, paid-for content and events, and
to leverage scale to deliver sustainable growth in adjusted EBITDA margins and cash flow

Our refocus arcund four market segments - Markeling, Professional, Financial and Consumer - will facilitate
effective delivery and exacution of revenue and cost synergles, strengthen further inltiatives to increase the
proportion of revenues generated from digital, paid-for content and events, and allow the business to exploit
fully the opportunities presented by the five acquisitions completed since July 2011,

Dividend

The Board 1s recommending a final dividend of 1 575p per share, giving a full year dividend of 2 4p (2012
2 25p). The 7% increase in the full year dividend reflects the Board's confidence in the future prospects of the
Group.

The level of dividend cover agalnst adjusted EPS at 1 9 times (2012 1 9 times) remains slightly below our target
level of 2 to 3 times The Board's view is that this remains appropriate as our markels return to growth and we
continue to see the banefits from the restructuring and investment inttiatives we have underiaken over the last
two years.

Board and employees

The last 12 months have been a time of both challenge and achlevement for the business and our people |
would like to take this opportunity to express my thanks to all our employeas for their commitment, energy and
enthusiasm both in relation to the year's results and in helping to continue to bulld the basis for Group’s future
success

Colin Morrison has served as a non-executive director since 2004 and will not be offering himself for re-election
al the Annual General Meeting In November 2013 1 would like to place on record my thanks for the contrlbution
that Colin has made 1o the Board and the Group over the last 9 years

Geoff Wilmot stood down as Chief Executive Officer on 15 May 2013 The process o appoint a new permanent
Chief Executive Officer 1s continuing and the Board anticipates making an announcement in due course
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Centaur Media plc

Chairman’s Statement (continued)

Current trading and outlook

The trading momentum across the Group in the latter part of the 2013 financial year has continued into 2014
With a sharper focus on markets and customers, opportunities to scale the business more effectively, and a
strong pipeline of new digital platforms and event launches, Centaur is better placed to exploit fully the
numaerous opportunities across the Group

The Group ended the year with an improved revenue and sarnings profile and with further opparturity to builld a
more scalable and flexible cost base The digital, subscrption and events businesses are growing well, whilst
the print, advertising funded businesses are stable With deferred revenues up 27%, the outlook for 2014 is
positive

The Board's primary focus is on leveraging Centaur's brands and refocused organisation, and accelerating
organic and new product growth

Patrick Taylor
Chalrman
11 September 2013
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Centaur Media plc

Chief Executive Review

Strategic overview

Centaur Is an integrated, multi-platform business media group, providing business information, events and
marketing solutions to selected professional and commercial markets

The Group's slrategic objectives are

e To build market-leading posltions in selected high growth markets, each underpinned by a deep and
unrwalled understanding of the markets and customers that we serve.

« To improve the quality of our revenues and earnings by increasing the proportion of revenues generated
from digital, pald-for content and events

« To leverage scale and lo drive operational excellence across the Group to deliver sustainable growth in
adjusted EBITDA margins and cash flow

Financial targets

In October 2011, the Group announced headline target measures for the three financial years to 30 June 2014
These were to double revenues, double the digital share of total revenues to at least 50% and double adjusted
EBITDA margins to at least 25%.

In the year to 30 June 2013, digltal revenues accounted for 35% of total revenuss, EBITDA margins were 18%
and revenues were 24% ahead of thelr 2011 underlying base Our progress in achieving the targets sef out in
2011 has been primanly held back by weaker underlymg revenus growth in the two financial years to 30 June
2013

We remain focused on increasing our digital share of total revenues and our adjusted EBITDA margins, but we
anticlpate replacing In due course the underlying revenues objective with more appropriate targets.

Market and segment focus

To accelerate the delivery against its sirategic objectives, Centaur has refocused its business around four
market segments Marketing, Professional, Financtal and Consumer By focusing on our markets, custoemers
and audiences we are

s Ensuring that we are an essential part of the markets we operate in with a clearly defined value proposition
that creates competitive advantage for our customers and audiences.

» Improving collaboration and integration across the business As a result, we are’

o Strengthening Initiatives to increase the proportion of revenues generated from digital, pald-for
content and events Advertising revenues will see therr relative importance dminish over time

o Faciltating greater focus on the delivery and execution of revenue and cost synergies and
accelerating the pace of change across the Group, leveraging cur asset base and skili sets across
the entire business

o Allowing the business to fully exploit the opportunittes presented by the five acqulsitions completed
since July 2011
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Centaur Media plc

Chief Executive Review {continued)

Strategic overview (continued)

Market segments

As announced in May 2013, the Group Is now reporting its resuits across four market segments, which comprise
the following activities and brands

Markeling

The digital, print and events aclivities across the established B2B brands - Markefing Week, Creative
Revisw, and Design Week.

Markeling Week Live, our flagship exhibltion serving the Eurcpean marketing community.

The Profile Group, a dugital information business which provides forward pianning and contact
information to the marketing, media and PR communities.

Econsuitancy, a digital information and events business which is building a leading possttion In the
market! for digital marketing and e-commerce

Professional

The digital, print and events activities across the eslablished B2B brands serving the Legal, HR and
Engineering communities - The Lawysr, Employee Benefits and The Engineer

Perfect Informalion, a digital Infoermation and work flow business serving the global corporate advisory
sector.

VB Ressarch, a digital information business serving Investment communilies across the global
renewable energy and secunty markets

FEM, an information and events business serving HR professionals across the global mobility markst

A portfalio of B2B exhibitions serving the Mestings, Business Travel, Engineering and Humanitarian
sectors — The Meetings Show, Business Travel Show, Subcon and Aidex.

Financiai

The digital, print and events activities across the established B2B brands serving the financlal services
industry - Money Marketing, Mortgage Strategy, Fund Strategy and Corporate Advisor

Taxbriefs, a leading provider of specialist content to the financial services industry.

Headltne Money, a digital information business serving journalists across the UK financial services
sector

The Platforum, a specialist Infermation business in the relail financlal services sector

Consumer

The digital, print and events activities across the established UK focused self-build, renovation, home
improvement and period homes markets - Homebuillding and Renovating, The Nalfonal and Reglonal
Homebullding and Renovating exhibitions, Real Homes, Period Living and The National Home
Improvement Show
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Centaur Media plc

Chief Executive Review {continued)

Strategic overview (continued)

Alongside the refocus of the business around its markets and customers, the Group Is also:

Bullding a stronger digital culture through Investment In digital development capability across the Group as a
whale rather than across individual divistons.

Investing In core audience and customer data and technology platforms

Investing in our people to develop and align core skills and capabllities across the business, specifically
related to digital development, sales and marketing

Bullding a high performance culture with improved reward mechanisms that better align to stretching
performance goals

Accelerating opportunities lo build paid-for content subscription solutions across those parts of the business
that have traditionally been primarlly adverlising funded

Applying more rigour around investment in new product development and the allocation of capital and
management time across the Group as a whole, rather than across individual divisions.

Consolidating all London-based operations in one office While this will not be complete until 2014, we have
agreed to co-locate Econsultancy alongside other marketing portfolio assets hased at Centaur's Wells
Street offices by December 2013 This will allow the Group to exploit revenue synergies and shared
capabilities more effectively across the Marketing portfolio

Accelerating the integration of recent acquisifions to scale the business more effectively and to leverage the
operational and technology capabiliies and entrepreneunal flair inherited with many of these acquisitions

Flnancial year end

The Board has considered carefully the impact of the maternial weighting of the Group's trading to the fourth
quarter of its present financial year Given the limited levels of visibility across some parts of the business, and
the consequential impact on expectations around our full year numbers, the Board has decided to align the
Group's financia! year end with the majonty of its peers, and move the financlal year end to December. Further
information on the impact of this change is included in the Financtal Review
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Centaur Media plc

Chilef Executive Review (continued)

Strategic overview {continued)

Management Team

The Group is managed by an Operating Board, which is led by Mark Kerswell as interim CEQ Peter Harris has
been appointed as interim CFO Across each of the four market segments, Simon Middelboe and Andrew
Evans lead our information and events activities respectively. Stephen Farish has recently joined the Group on
an Interim basis to oversee our publishing activities, and Kathleen Jones was appointed to the Operating Board
as Group HR Director in November 2012 These changes in the leadership team have provided new impetus
and focus to the business and the challenges ahead

People

The operating board has prioritised investment in pecple policles and practices as part of a plan to strengthen
our employee proposltion

Employee engagement was measured across the Group in an all employee survey i March 2013. This is the
first time we have conducted a Group wide survey since 2011 and the results were generally positive. Key
areas of focus Identified as a direct result of the survey were to improve the working premises and environment,
enhance our internal communications, improve opportunities for tralning and development across the Group and
develop appropriate recognition and reward strategies In addition to each theme being sponscred by a
mamber of the Operating Board, local management have developed plans to Improve against issues Identified
locally Our alm is to create a positive working environment where our people can fiourish In their careers by
belng customer focused and best equipped to improve what we do for the benefit of our customers.

Remuneration continues to be an important topic for the Group, our employees and our stakeholders We are
actively working to ensure improved alignment between performance and reward, and that our pecple are
appropriately incentivised with variable pay and bonus plans that dnve high performance whilst reinforcing the
appropriate cultural behaviours and values of the Group We have moved to an annualised pay process for this
performance year to ensure that reward Is administered more effectively and pay awards are allocated against
focused criteria in a falr and equitable way

We have implemented a new cn-line Performance and Development management tool for the new performance
year Having trained all managers on their responsibilittes, we alm to help drive employee contributton and
engagement as great conversalions are focused on SMART objectives and providing better development
support to staff This is the foundation for bullding and embedding a stronger performance culture across {he

group,

We also recognise that managers need to improve their cwn management skills continually and Centaur 5
investing m building the Cenfaur Management Academy to ensure managers are better equipped to deal with
the challenges they face in a changing workplace, Acquisitions such as Econsultancy have highlighted the
depth of expertise we hold within the Group and we are keen to expiolt that potential for the beneft of the
Group
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Centaur Media plc

Chlef Executive Review (continued)
Operatlonal review

Our events and subscnption-based businesses have delivered strong growth In 2013, and are well positioned to
accelerate growth Into 2014. Our exhibitions portfolio has grown revenues by 11%, which is an exceltent
performance relative to our UK peers, and reflects our focus on optimising the exisling portfolio and driving a
healthy pipeline of new event launches. Our subscription-based businesses have also shown sirong
momentum, with Profile and Econsultancy both delivering growth in annualised invoiced subscriplion revenues
in excess of 25%, which positions both businesses exceptionally well as we head into the new financlal year
Our other recent acquisitions, FEM and The Platforum, have also had strong years and are well positioned to
deliver good growth Into 2014 VB Research Is also growing well and we anticipate this accelerating into 2014,
particularly as it staris to realise benefits from closer collaboration with other businesses operating in the same
professtonal markels

Underlying revenues did not, however, return to growth as had been anticipated in February 2013. The key
factors impacting underlying and reported performance In the latter part of the year were the continued
weakness in print adverhising, most notably across our financial titles, further declines in recruitment revenues,
and losses incurred across Econsultancy's overseas operattons While the impact of these factors has been
partially offset by the effect of prior year cost savings and growth across other parts of the Group, this revenue
weakness has had a matenal impact on full year earnings Underlying digital revenues in 2013 were flat,
reflecting expected weakness in Perfect Information and weaker digital advertising revenues, principally across
the Financial portfolio

A key focus across the Group is shifting the emphasls of our revenue mix n favour of digital, pald-for content
and events Print and advertising revenuss still have an important role to play, but their relative importance
across the Group Is diminishing as planned Advertising revenues now account for 35% of total revenues (2012
43%), with recruitment revenues accounting for enly 8% of total revenues (2012 11%) Paid-for content and
events revanues now account for 28% and 36% respectively of total revenues (2012. 26% and 31%) Digital
revenues accounted for 35% of total 2013 revenues (2012 30%), with print revenues now accounting for only
28% of total revenues (2012 38%) The continued shift in our revenue mix reflects the significant underlying
drop in print advertising revenues across our established financial and marketing titles, but also the impact of
recent acquisitions, all of which are focused predominantly on digital, paid-for content and events

We have continued to manage our cost base rigorously, but the impact of the weaker print and adverlising
revenues means that EBITDA margins remain at 18%, with adjusted EBITDA of £12.9m (2012 £117m)
growing by 10% With greater focus on operational excellence across the Group as a whole, the Group belleves
that EBITDA margins in excess of 25% are achievable in the medium term

As a result of the weakness in print advertising revenues across the Group and a reduction in perfarmance from
overseas locations, the Group has recognised a non-cash impairment of £39 2m (2012, £nil} against goodwall
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Centaur Media plc

Chief Executlve Review (continued)

Oparational review (continued)
Marketing

Qur Marketing division brings together all of the established and recently acquired businesses that serve the
Marketing Industry, Including Markeling Week, Creative Review, Design Week, Profile and Econsultancy. The
benefits of the recent refocus on the markets wa serve are expected to be most keenly felt across this division
The consolidation of these businesses, also under one roof, will create a far stronger proposition to the market,
and create further opportunities to leverage the technology and business madels acraoss the combinead portfolio

The 59% increase In reported revenues reflects the impact of full year contribubions from Profile and
Econsullancy, acquired In February 2011 and July 2012 respectively. Underlying revenues declined by 11%,
predominantly reflecting weakness in our print adverlising revenues across Marketing Week and Creative
Review Digital adverlising revenues across these titles were flat ysar on year.

The dmvision continues to generate revenues from digital, events and print In line with our Group strategy, with
digita! revenues Increasing to 44% (2012 35%), events increasing to 39% {2012, 33%) and print decreasing lo
16% {2012 33%) of divisional revenues Adverhising revenues across this division now account for 33% of
divisional revenues (2012 48%), with paid-for content revenues accounting for 28% (2012 20%)

Events revenues include Marketing Week Live, the Marketing Week Engage Awards, The Digitals and
Econsultancy’s events portfolio and corporate training activities in the UK and overseas

Econsultancy's 2013 results have been significantly impacied by losses Incurred across ther international
offices, primarily related to the deferral of corporate training engagements Action has already been taken to
mitigate these losses In 2014, with the closure of the Australian office and headcount reductions across the New
York and Singapore offices Econsultancy's UK office has reported good growth in both revenues and adjusted
EBITDA, and the invoiced subscription revenues across Econsultancy’s digital subscnption products have
grown by 22% year on year

Econsultancy is {aunching the Festival of Marketing in October 2013, effectively reposihoning its existing UK
avents and leveraging the brand strength and relatienships across all the Marketing division products Forward
bookings for this evenl are encouraging, with revenues at over 80% of target at the end of August 2013.

Profile has continued to report strong growth in its digital, subscription-based revenues Invoiced subscniption
revenues at 30 June were 32% ahead of the same period last year, with renewal rates, yields and volumes alil
arowing well Profile has recently established a presence in North America and is launching its new Celebnty
Inteligence product in September 2013 The growth prospects across the business are exclting, as are the
opportunittes to lavarage the digital expertise within Profile across other parls of the Group.

Adjusted EBITDA margins across the Marketing segment fell from 19% to 15%, reflectng the impact of
Econsultancy’s overseas operations, Investment in digital subscription products and weaker adverhising
revenues across our established B28 fitles.

Deferred revenueas across the Marketing segment are up 125% compared to the same period last year Forward
bookings across our print and digital B2B publications are also up 8% compared to last year, and the frends that
we are seeing across these titles are encouraging

The outlook for this division 1s increasingly positive - a sharper focus on our customers and audience, and

greater opportunity to leverage digital, paid-for content opportunlties across the division, gives us greater
confidence as we enter the new financial year
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Centaur Media plc

Chief Executive Review (continued)

Operational review (continued)

Professlonal

The Professional dvision consists of a range of brands, including strong traditional print titles, industry-leading
exhibitions and recently acquired integrated digital solutions The exhibitions In this division, including The
Buslness Trave! Show, SubCon, Employee Benefits Live and Aldex, performed strongly with a 30% nise in
revenues to £2 9m (2012, £2 Zm).

Digital revenues have increased to 44% (2012, 42%), events have increased to 35% (2012 29%) and print has
decreased to 20% (2012 27%) of divisional revenues The division is less dependent on advertising revenues
that now account for 33% of divisional revenues (2012 41%), with pald-for content revenues accounting for
31% (2012 28%)

The Lawyer has performed well with revenues decreasing by only 3% in 2013 despite a challenging sector-
specific environment There are significant opportunities to partner with our other professional community
brands, Perfect Informalion and VBR By leveraging these strong brands we believe the market share of
existing products can be expanded more easlly We also see signlficant opportunities to build paid-for content
revenuas across The Lawyer,

The HR portfollo, consisting of Employse Benefits and FEM, performed well producing an 18% rise in revenues,
with the Employee Benefits Live exhibition producing a 21% nse in revenues, and FEM growing ils revenues by
50%, the latter benefiting from a strong position in the global HR mobility community.

Perfect Information has performed in line with expectations In 2013, and is now leveraging its quality product
offerings on a global scale. To meet the needs of its large and diverse global audience of investment banks,
corporate Jaw firms and other corporate finance professionals, Perfect Information is launching a brand new
product, Fllings Expert, which gives subscribers access to 10 years' worth of content {(c15 million documents)
through an intuttive and easy-to-use interface. Perfect Information is also now seeking to expand its content
and customer base in Asia, and has recenlly established a presence in Hong Kong

Also contributing to digital revenue growth was VB Research, acquired In 2011, which grew revenues by 86% o
£0 7m

Deferred revenues across the Professional division are up 12% compared to the same period last year,
reflecting increases related to The Lawysr and The Meeting Show

Financlial

Our Financlal division comprises our leading brands, Money Marketing, Fund Strategy, Mortgage Strategy,
Corporate Advisor, Tax Briefs and Headline Money, together with the recent acquisition, The Platforum, all
closely serving the financlal services community.

Adverlising revenuss across the print Utles in this division fell by 33% In 2013, reflecting the uncertainty caused
by the introduction of the Retail Distribution Review (RDR) in January 2013. This is the principal reason for the
15% reduction in underlying revenues across this division Dhgital advertising revenues were also impacted by
RDR and general market weakness, and fell by 9% in 2013 The Platforum has continued to grow well, with
revenues 38% ahead of the prior year

The Financial division 1s the most print and advertismg dependent part of the Group, with 53% (2012 58%) of its
revenues delivered in print format and 48% (2012, 54%) advertsing-funded Oigital and events revenues
accountad for 23% and 24% (2012 20% and 22%);) of total divisional revenues

Events products include the Money Marketing Awards, Headline Money Awards and a series of summit events

Adjusted EBITDA margins fell from 18% in 2012 to 17% in 2013, reflecting the fixed cost base assoclated with
the reduction in print-based advertising revenues
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Centaur Media plc

Chlef Executive Review (continued)
Operational review (continued)

Financial {continued)

Forward bookings across the financial diviston are 31% up compared to the same period last year, and the
declines in print advertising revenuss seen throughout 2013 are showing greater signs of stability In additlon,
deferred revenues are 10% ahead of the prior year with a strong contribution from The Platforum While starting
from a significantly lower base, the outiook for the 2014 financlal year is encouraging

Consumer

This division comprises exhibitions and publishing assets devoted to our consumer customer base Leading
brands include the Homebuiiding and Renovating portfolio and the National Home Improvement Show.

A strong performance in 2013 has seen growth in bath revenues (5%) and adjusted EBITDA margin (15% to
16%), principally driven from growth in event and digital revenues The publishing assets within this division
delivered another resilient performance against difficult market conditions, with continued improvement in
margin

Due io the significant events and print-based composition of this divislon (approximately 45% of dvislon
revenues arlsing from each in 2013 and 2012) there has been no significant movement In the revenue type or
source.

Strategic plans and initial Investment has been made n developing digita! opportunities across our publishing
assets, creating further routes to market and potential for greater market share Digital advertising revenues
have risen 29% in 2013 reflecting the Initial impact of these projects In the lalter half of the year, and providing
for enhanced future prospects

New Product Development

Recent launch aclivity across the Exhibltions portfolio includes Aidex, Hospitality Technology, Advanced
Manufacturing Show and Live Marketing The Group has an exciting pipeline of new digital and events-focused
activity, with The Meelings Show running for the first tme i Juiy 2013 and the Festival of Marketing running in
Qctober 2013. We are aiso about to launch new or refreshed digital subscription products, including Celebrity
Intelligence {(The Profila Group) and Filings Expert {Perfecl Information).

Across Centaur's business Information products, we have recently created a centre of excellence in digital
product development in business Information, which has concelved, designed and bullt a number of exciting
new web-basad products and we are now looking to scale this capability to benefit other parts of the Group

Acquisition

The Group completed the acquisition of Econsultancy 1n July 2012, Econsultancy Is a digital information and
avents business which occupies a leading position in the global market for digital marketing and e-commerce It
now forms an Integral part of cur Marketing portfolio where we see the opportunity for significant cross-selling
and marketing synergies The business Is also well posttioned to deliver substantial revenues from paid-for
content solutlons in this fast growing internattonal market
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Centaur Media plc

Chlef Executive Review (continued)

Operational review (continued)
2014 priorities |

Looking ahead to 2014, our fulure business model and the accelerated delivery against our strategic objectives
are dependent upon.

e A deep engagement across the markets that we serve, our audiences and our customers

« A ngorous focus on data and ihe insights and intelligence that we can draw upon as a resuli of our market
knowledge and experience.

» Operational excellence — leveraging digital, tachnology and sales capability in a straightforward, disciplined
and scalable fashion, and ensuring the business is operated as efficiently as possible

+ Embedding a performance culture and developing our people capabilities for the future

The momentum that we have across the business 1s encouraging, and the enthusiasm and commitment that all
of our staff have displayed Is iremendous Our focus on serving selected markets in a more collaborative |
fashion alongside our investmant in people and technology means that we are well placed to grow the business |
into the 2014 financlal year and beyond

W

M H Kerswall
Interim Chief Executive Officer
11 September 2013
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Centaur Media plc

Financial Review

Highlights
In 2013, the Group Increased Its reported revenue by 10% Adjusted EBITDA increased by 10% to £12 9m
(2012 £11 7m), wilh adjusted EBITDA margins mantained at 18% Adjusted profit before tax Increased by 8%

and adjusted earnings per share grew by 7% The total proposed dividend for the year of 2 4p (2012 2 25p) 1s
up by 7%

The Group has recently announced a refocusing of the business around its key customer-facing markels
Marketing, Professional, Financial, and Consumer The segmental resulls are presented accordingly

Restructuning activities have continued Into 2013, producing more efficient and scalable central departments

Furthermore, strong attention to cash management has ensured the Group’s target of a net debt to EBITDA
ratio below 2 times has been maintained.

As a result of the weakness in print adverlising revenues across the Group and a reduction in performance from
overseas locations, the Group has recognised a non-cash impalrment of £39 2m (2012 £nil},
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Centaur Media plc

Financial Review (continued)
Segmental reporting

Sel out below is revenue and adjusted EBITDA by dwvision, together with the respective reported and underlying
growth rates

Reported Underlying
2013 2012 Growth Growth?
£Em £m % % |
Marketing
Revenue 23.8 150 59% (11%)
Adjusted EBITDA" 3.6 2.9 24% (29%)
Adjusted EBITDA margin 15% 15%
Professional
Revenue 24.1 247 {2%) 5%
Adjusted EBITDA' 5.4 43 26% 31%
Adjusted EBITDA margin 22% 17%
Financlal
Revenue 13.3 15.6 {15%) (15%)
Adjusted EBITDA' 22 3.0 {27%) {27%)
Adjusted EBITDA margin 17% 19%
Consumer
Revenue 10.8 103 5% 5%
Adjusted EBITDA’ 17 1.5 13% 13%
Adjusted EBITDA margin 16% 15%
Total
Revenue 720 65 6 10% (3%)
Adjusted EBITDA’ 12.9 11.7 10% (2%)
Adjusted EBITDA margin 18% 18%

1. Adjusied resulfs exciude adjusling ltems as detalled in the Basls of Preparation section of the Stalement of Accounting Pollcies (page63)

2 Underlying growth rales adjust for the Impact of acquisitions, disposals and discontinusd aclivities by excluding them from both the
reported 2012 and 2013 resulls
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Centaur Media plc

Financial Review (continued)
Revenue
Total Group revenues grew by 10% to £72 Om {2012 £65 6m)

Underlying revenue declined by 3%, with print revenues declining by 14%, digital revenues flat and events
revenues up 7% The balance of reported revenues has improved in 2013 with digital revenues increasing to
35% (2012 30%), evenls revenues increasing to 36% (2012 31%) and print falling to 28% (2012 38%) of total
revenues By source, advertising revenues accounted for 35% of total revenues (2012 43%) and paid-for
content 28% (2012 25%)

The Marketing division’s revenues ware £23.8m, 59% higher than the £15 Om reported in 2012 The acquisition
of Econsultancy contributed £9 3m of revenue, offset by declines in other Marketing assets, including Markeling
Woeek and Creatlve Review Digital revenues in this division Increased to 44% (2012' 35%) with print decreasing
to 16% (2012: 33%) By source, advertising revenue accounted for 33% (2012 48%) and paid-for content 28%
{2012 20%).

The Professional division reported revenues of £24 1m (2012 £24 7m), which was §% up on an underlying
basis The exhibitions in this division, Including SubCon and Aldex, performed strongly with a 30% (£0.7m) rise
in revenues. VB Research, acquired in 2011, grew revenues by 96% to £0 Tm

The Financiat division saw a 15% decline In revenues, on both a reported and underlying basis, to £13 3m
(2012 £15 6m), principally as a result of declines in print and advertising revenues, which account for 53%
{2012 58%) and 48% (2012 54%) of revenues respeclively Digital revenues in this division were 23% of {otal
revenues, up from 20% in 2012,

Consumer revenues of £10 8m were 5% up on a reported basis on 2012 (£10.3m), with growth ansing from
events, including the Nalional Home Improvement Show and the National Homebuilding Shows and digital
products

Revenue per employee has remalned constant at £122,000 in 2013 compared fo 2012 Whilst revenue has
risen by 10%, the acquisiton of Econsullancy has added incremental headcount and the effects of the
restrucluring activities have not yet been translated into average headcount reducticns as these activittes were
completed during the year

Adjusted EBITDA and adjusted operating profit

Adjusted EBITDA of £12 9m was 10% up on the £11 7m reported in 2012 Adjusted EBITDA margins remained
flat at 18%

Net adjusted operaling expenses rose £52m to £622m (2012 £57 Om), reflecting the acquisition of
Econsultancy (which contnibuted £8.3m of cost to the Group) offset by various restructuring intiatives to reduce
costs Total employment related costs, excluding redundancy costs, were £26 4m (2012° £25 2m), Including
Econsultancy costs of £3 8m Adjusted for the impact of Econsultancy, average headcount across the Group
has rematmned largely flat at 525 (2012 537)

Qperating loss of £34 9m decreased from a profit of £3 3m reported in 2012 as a result of a £39 2m imparment
charge against goodwill (2012 £nil)
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Centaur Media plc

Financial Review (continued)
Reconciliation of adjusted EBITDA to (loss}/ profit before tax

Note 2013 2012

£m £m

Adjusted EBITDA 12.9 "7
Depreciation & Amortisation 2 29) (2 8)
Share based payment (02) (03)
Ad]usted operating profit 9.8 8.6
Finance costs 4 (12) (086
Adjusted profit before tax 8.6 8.0
Adjusting items Exceptional costs 3 {42 4) (4 5)
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 2 (2 3) 0 8)

| Exceptional finance costs 4 (1 3) -
(Loss)/profit before tax {37.4) 2.7

Adjusting items

The Group has reported adjusting items before tax of £46 Om (2012 £5 3m), Including an impairment charge of
£39 2m (2012 £nil), restrucluring costs of £3.1m (2012' £2 3m), acquisition-related costs of £0.7m (2012.
£1 1m), onerous lease costs of £0 6m (2012 £0 3m), finance costs of £1.3m (2012 £nil) and amortisation on
acquired intangibles (not included 1n exceptional costs) of £2 3m (2012, £0 8m)

Throughout 2013 further restructuring activities have been completed, including management changes and the
restructure of central departments and commarcial teams. Total restructuring costs were £3 1m (2012 £2,3m),
which Includes redundancy costs of £2 8m (2012 £1 8m) Restrucluning costs are included within exceptional
items

Acquisition-related costs include deferred contingent consideration arrangements with acquisition vendors and
legal and professional fees and stamp duty. Impairment relates to the write down of goodwill in Marketing,
Professional and Financial segments The tax effect of adjusting items is a credit of £1 2m (2012 credit £0 8m)

Thare were no sales or closures of assets and therefore no post closure costs in 2013 (2012° £0.3m).
Further information on exceptional items Is presented in note 3 to the financial statemants
Net finance costs

Net finance costs were £2 5m (2012 £0 6m), consisting of £1 2m of charges refiecting a full year of the debt
facilities put in place 1n 2012 and an exceptional finance cost of £1 3m in respect of the unwind of the discount
of the Econsultancy deferred consideration. Finance costs also Include the commitment fees in respect of
undrawn amounts under the new bank facility and the amortisation of the arrangement fee.

Adjusted profit before tax of £8.6m was 8% up on the £8 Om reported in 2012 Reported loss before tax was
£37.4m (2012. profit of £2 7m)

Taxation

A tax charge of £1 Om (2012 £1 4m) has been recognised. The adjusted tax charge was £2 2m (2012 £2 2m),
giving an adjusted effective tax rate (compared to adjusted profit before tax) of 25 6% (2012 27 5%)
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Financial Review (continued)
Earnings per share

The Group's adjusted EPS increased by 7% to 4.5p (2012 4 2p) Basic loss per share was 27.3p (2012 EPS of
0 9p). Full details of the EPS calculations are presented in note 7 to the financial statements

Dividends

A final dividend of 1 575p per share Is proposed, giving a total for the year of 2.4p (2012. 2 25p) up 7%. The
final dividend 1s subject to shareholder approval at the annual general meeting and will be paid on 6 December
2013 to all ordinary shareholders on the register at close of business on 8 November 2013

Acqulsitions and disposals
The Group completed the acquisition of Econsultancy in July 2012

The acquisition of Econsultancy involves an earn-out payment which Is not contingent on the continued
employment of the vendors Under the provisions of IFRS 3 (revised), a provision for such contingent
consideration Is recognised at the date of acquisitton as part of the cost of acquisition Any subsequent
amendments lo the estimated future cost are recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. During the
year the estimation of EBITDA In calendar year 2015 has been revised from £4 Om to £3 Om resulting in a
decrease In the provislen for contingent consideration and a credit recorded 1n the Statement of Comprehensive
Income of £5.4m — see note 19 for detalls.

Financing and bank covenants

In 2012, the Group agreed a £40 Om revolving credit facility, provided by RBS and Barclays This 1s a four-year
faclity that amortises by £2 5m per annum. The prin¢ipal financlal covenants under the facllity are maximum
net debl to EBITDA of 2 5 times, progressivaly dropping to 2 0 times in the final year of the facility, minimum
interest cover of 5 times, and minimum cash flow to debt service of 1.1 fimes Alf these covenants are tested on
a quarterly basis At 30 June 2013, all tests were passed

While the maximum net debt to EBITDA covenant is 2 5 times, the Group has set out a targel leverage ratio of
below 2 times. At 30 June 2013, the ratio of net debt to EBITDA was 1 6 imes Adjusted to include a provision
for deferred consideration as part of net debt, the ratio as at 30 June 2013 was 1.9 times
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Centaur Media plc

Financial Review {continued)
Cash flow

A summary of cash flow Is set out below. Operating cash flow of £8.6m (2012 £10 3m) was generated from
adjusted EBITDA of £12 9m (2012: £11.7m)

2013 2012

£m £m

Adjusted EBITDA 129 117
Movement in working capilal 11 08
Capital expenditure {4.4) (2 2)
Operating cash flow 96 103
Cash impact of exceptional items 47 (42)
Taxation {1.3) -
Intaerest and finance leases {14) {12)
Free cash flow 22 49
Acquisltions net of disposals (11 6) {11 Q)
Diwdends (3.3) {29)
Share exercises/{purchases) 04 {0 2)
Net cash flow (12 3) 92)
Opening net {debt)/cash (7 2) 20
Closing net debt {19 5) (72)

Cash conversion of 112% has been achieved {2012 120%), reflecting increased capital expenditure and a more
positive working caplital movement. The reduction in working capital in 2013 of £1 1m (2012 £0 8m) excludes
the impact of exceptional cost accruals and the effect of acqulsitions and disposals.

Free cash flow of £2 2m (2012 £4 9m) Is reported after exceptional related cash flows of £4 7m (2012 £4 2m)
The cash Impact of exceptional items principally includes payments related to redundancy costs incurred in
2012 and 2013, and the cash Impact of acquisition-related expenses in 2013 Tax of £1 3m was paid in 2013
(2012 £nll) as the Group generated taxable profits in 2012 The Group spent a net amount of £116m on
acquisittons and disposals in 2013, and further analysis on these investments 1s included in notes 8 and 25 to
the financial statements

Net debt at 30 June 2013 was £19 5m (2012 £7 2m)

Capiltal expenditure

Capital expenditure on software and property, plant and equipment amounted to £4 4m (2012 £2 2m) reflecting
the continued development of digital platforms across the Group and the implementation of a new CRM system
Balance sheot

Nel assets at 30 June 2013 were £81.6m (2012 £122 6m) Deferred income at 30 June 2013 was £14 3m, a
27% increase on the £11.3m reported at 30 June 2012

Goodwlll at 30 June 2013 was £98 9m (2012 £121 3) Additions in the year of £16 8m were mainly due to the
acquisition of Econsultancy. An impairment of £39 2m (2012 £nmil) has heen recognised as a result of
weaknesses In print advertising and a reduction in performance from overseas locations
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Centaur Media plc

Financial Review (continued)

Key performance indicators (KPls)

The key strategic objectives of the Group are summarised in the Strategic Overview section of the Chief
Executive Review on page 6 The Board uses a range of performance indicators to moniter progress against
these objectives and manage the business The indicators which the Board considers to be important are as set
out below

2013 2012

Underlying revenue growth / (decline) by revenue type 3
Print -14% -5%
Digital - 7%
Events 7% 6%
Total -3% 2%
Digital revenues as a percentage of total revenues 35% 30%
Adjusted EBITDA margin 18% 18%
Revenue per employee (£'000s) 122 122
Adjusted PBT (Em) ! 86 80
Adjusted EPS {pence) ' 45 42
Cash conversion rate 2 112% 120%

1 Adjusled resulls exclude adjusting lems as delelled in the Basis of Preparation section of the Statement of Accounting Policlas (page 62)
2 Cash conversion rafe Is operating cash flow expressed as a percenlage of adjusted operaling profil Adjusted operafing profit Is as
calculgled In the Basls of Preparation section of the Stalement of Accounting Policles {page 63) and operaling cash flow Is as caiculated In
the Financial Review (page 20)

3 Underlylng growth rates adjust for the Impact of acquisitons, disposals and discontinued activities by excluding them from both the
reported 2012 and 2013 resulls

Financial year end

in consldering the seasonality of the Group’s results and the significant dapendence on the trading perfarmance
in the April to June quarter, the Board has decided to move the financial year end from 30 June to 31
December

We envisage providing the next audited report and financial statements to cover the 18 month period to 31
December 2014, following an interim perlod reporl for the 6 month period to 31 December 2013, and an
additional intenim period report for the 6 month period to 30 June 2014 Interim management statements will be
provided at a similar frequency and timing to coincide with the new reporting periods
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Financial Review (continued})

Conclusion

This has been another important year for Centaur, Involving the largest acquisition in the Group's history which
has resulted In significant EBITDA growth. Whilst weakness in our print advertising revenues in 2013 has
resulted in fthe recognition of an impairment charge, the integration of Econsultancy and other previous
acquisitions, and further focus on our core brands, has resulted in solid progress towards our on-going strategic
aims, most notably improvement in our revenue mix via growth in digital revenue share We have further
strengthened the efficiency and scalability of our central depariments, and made significant back office
investment This combined with a new focus on our markets and customers will provide for an enhanced ability
to realise synergistic opportunities on a more flexible cost base.

Pell .

Peter Harris
Interim Finance Director

11 September 2013
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Centaur Media plc

Board of Diractors

Patrick Taylor, Chairman
Patrick was appointed as Chairman in December 2009.

Patrick was formerly Chief Executive Officer of GWR Group plc, the UK's largest comimercial radio group,
ranked by licences and audiences Before joining GWR, Patrick was Group Finance Director of Caplial Radio
plc. A qualified chartered accountant, Palrick began his career at Coopers & Lybrand and became a partner
with the practice In 1980, speclalising in corporate finance He is non-executive Chalrman of Nonstop Adventure
Limited and Skiplex Limited, and a non-executive director of The Lowwood Products Company Limited

Mark Kerswoell, Intarim Chief Executive Officer
Mark jolned Centaur in 2011 as Chief Financial Officer and was appeinted as Intenm Chief Executive Cfflcer in
May 2013

Mark has held international financial and operational roles in a range of business information, publishing,
conferences and exhibitions groups From 2005 he worked initlally as Depuly Finance Director and
subsequently as Chief Operating Officer at Informa PLC, with responsibilittes including corporate finance,
investor relations, strategy and business integration From 1996 to 2005 he worked at IIR, an international
conferences and exhibitions business, and was appeinted Chief Financial Officer in 2000 Mark 1s a Chartered
Accountant

Christopher Satterthwalte, Senlor independent Director

Christopher began hus commercial career as a graduate trainee at HJ Heinz Since then, he has been part of
three different kinds of markeling communication agencies' IMP (1981-1923), then the UK's largest Sales
Promotion and Direct Marketing agency; HHCL & Pariners {1993-2000) - Campaign’s Adverlising Agency of the
Dacads, and Bell Pottinger {2000-2002) - the UK's leading Public Relattons agency. He bscame Chief
Executive of Chime Communications plc in 2003

He is Charrman of The Roundhouse and a member of the Government's Professional and Business Services
Council. He is a former Chairman of the Marketing Society

Colin Morrison, Non-Executive Director

Colin Is a former journalist who has been CEO of media and digital businesses across Europe, the US and
AsiaPacific for Australia Consolidated Press, Emap, Reed Elsevier, Hearst, Future and Axel Springer He s
chalrman of Globelynx Limited and the Royal National Children's Foundation, and a non-executive director of
Travel Weekly Group Limited,

Robert Boyle, Non-Executive Director

Rabert, a qualified Chartered Accountant, was a partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, where he was
chairman of the PwC European Entertainment and Media Practice for iwelve years, refiring In 2006 He is a
non-executive director, and chairman of the Audit Committes, of Maxis Berhad (in Malaysia), Witan Investment
Trust pic and Prosperily Voskhod Fund Limited (an AIM listed company)

Rebecca Miskin, Non-Executive Director

Digital media and product development expert, Rebecca Miskin, is working at Hearst Magazines UK to develop
digital strategles across all brands in the UK Rebecca joined Hearst Magazines UK from NBC Universal In the
US where, as General Manager for \Village Networks, she was responsible for editorial oversight, product
development slrategy and maximising partnerships for the company’s core digital sites.

Rebecca began her carger in media at Reed Elsevier as Director of Europe, then became the first international
publisher at IPC Media Limited, set up IPC Medla Limited's Content & Licensing division and was responsible
for all its digital revenues

Claire Baty, Company Secretary

Ciarre trained at Mazars and qualified as an accountant In 1998, Claire left accounting practice in 2004 to work
for Thomson Legal and Regulatory UK Limited {now part of Thomson-Reulers) and subsequently joined
Centaur Media plc in 2006, becoming Group Financlal Controller in 2008 and Company Secretary In 2010

Claire Is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and holds an MBA (Finance) from
Manchester Business School
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Centaur Media plc

Report of the Directors

The Directors of Centaur Media plc (the “Company”’ and “the Group™) present their Report on the affars of the
Group together with the audited consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2013.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Group are the provision of business information, events and marketing solutions to
selected professional and commerclal markets The principal activities of the Company are those of a holding
company

Buslness review

The Chief Execulive Review on pages 6 to 14 contains a review of the Group's strategic and operational
activities and future development The results for the year are reviewed In the Financial Review on pages 15 to
22 The Corporate Soctal Responsibility statement on pages 40 lo 41 contains dstails of the Group's pclicy in
relation to people, the environment and the community Key performance Indicators can be found in the
Financial Review on page 21 Principal nisks and uncertainties are detailed i this report on pages 27 to 28

Dividends

A final dividend of 1 575p per share Is proposed by the Directors, and subject to shareholder approval at the
Annual General Meeting, will ba paid on 6 December 2013 to ordinary shareholders on the register at the close
of business on 8 November 2013 With the intenm dividend of 0 825p per share this will make a total dvidend of
2 4p per share {2012 2 25p) for the year

Share capltal and substantial shareholdings

Detalls of the share capital are set out in note 21 to the financial statements As at 31 August, nolifications of
interests at or above 3% in the issued voting share capital of the Company had been recelved from the
following-

2013 2012
Aberforth Partners LLP? 20 90% 2063%
Artemis Investment Management 12 89% 13 35%
Juplter Asset Management Limited 9.68% 9 68%
River & Mercantile Asset Management LLP 8 28% 8 28%
Graham Veere Sherren (inc spouse) 722% 7.22%
Legal & General Group PLC 7.11% 711%
Griffin Land and Nurseries Inc - 370%

t This includes Wellcome Trust Limited which Is managed by Aberforth Partners LLP

At 31 August 2013 7,318,291 (2012 7,761,785) 10p ordinary shares are held in treasury, representing 4 87%
(2012 5 17%) of the issued share capital of the Company as at 30 June 2013. 800,000 deferred shares of 10p
each carry restricted voting rights and carry no right to receive a dividend payment

The movement in treasury shares during the year 1s due to the exercise of share options
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Centaur Media plc

Report of the Directors {continued)
Directors and Directors’ Interests

The Directors of the Company during the year and to the date of this report are detalled on page 32 All
Directors served from 1 July 2012 unless otherwise stated

Number of Shares acquired Shares disposed Number of

ordinary shares during the year of duringthe  ordinary shares

held at 1 July year held at 30 June

2012 2013*

JPE Taylor 750,000 - - 750,000
C Satterthwaite 95,942 - - 95,042
C Morrison 356,000 100,000 - 455,000
RW Boyle 80,000 - - 80,000
R 8 Miskin - - - -
M H Kerswell 20,000 100,000 - 120,000
GTD Wilmot (resigned 24 May 2013) 123,814 48,498 - 172,312

*ar date of resignation if eariler

The Directors’ Interests in share optlons, long-term incentive plans and the ShareSave plan are disclosed in the
Directors’ Report on Remuneration on pages 49 and 50

Since the year end, M H Kerswell has exercised options over 85,000 shares in the Retention Plan There have
been no other changes to Directors’ interests since the year end and up to the date of this report

Qualifying third party Indemnity provisions

By virtue of article 217 of the Arlicles of Association of the Company, a qualifying indemnity provision (within the
meaming given by section 234 of the Companies Act 2006) 1s in farce at the date of this report in respect of each
Director of the Company and was in force from 8 December 2005

The Company has purchased appropriate insurance in respect of legal actions against Directors and officers
Payment of craditors

It is the Group's policy to agree credit arrangements with suppliers as part of the general terms of supply
Payment is then made In accordance with these terms provided the goods and services have baen delivered in
accordance wilh the agreed terms and conditions The number and diversity of supply relationships means the
Group pursues no formal code or policy beyond this, Trade creditors of the Group at 30 June 2013 were
equivalent to 17 (30 June 2012 10) days’ purchases,

The Company had no trade payables at 30 June 2013 or 30 June 2012,
Charltable and political donations

The Group supports a nominated charity, chosen annually by employees Cancer Research UK was the
nominated chanty untit March 2013, and charltable donations of £10,000 (2012 £5,000) were made to this
chanty. MacMilllan Nurses was chosen as the nominated charity from Apnl 2013 and a denation of £5,000 was
made during the year. There were no political donatlons made (2012 nil)
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Centaur Media plc

Report of the Directors (continued)
Employment policy

The Group Is an equal opporluniies employer and appoints employees withoul reference to age, sex, ethnic
group or religious beliefs

It 1s the Group's policy to give full consideration to sultable applications for employment by disabled persons
Opportunities also exist for employees of the Group who become disabled to continue in their employment or to
be trained for other posttions in the Group

All companies within the Group actively encourage employes involvement at all levels, bolh through regular
employee briefings and by direct access to managers and the Direclors. In addition, the Share Incentive Plan
and the ShareSave Plan as descrlbed in note 22 encourage employees’ participation in the Group's
performance

All employees are regularly briefed on the Group's performance and new Initiatives through regular all-staff
email from the Intenim Chief Executive Officer

Significant agreements

The Group's bank facility agreement, referred to in note 26, i1s a significant agreement that 1s terminable on a
change of control of the Company In addition awards under cerlain of the long-term incentive plans, details of
which are set out in note 22, will vest or may be exchanged for awards of a purchaser's shares, upon a change
of control of the Company

Conflicts of Interest

Following the implementation of new legislation on conflict of interes, reflected in the changes to the Company's
Articles of Association in 2008, procedures are n place to deal with such conflicts and they have operated
effectively.

Financial instruments

A statement in relation to the use of fimancial instruments by the Group 1s shown in note 26 to the financial
statements
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Report of the Directors {(continued)

Principal risks and uncertaintles

Specific business risks to which the Group Is exposed are detailed below and the Board has implemenled a
comprehensive risk management process to identfy, monitor and mitigate these risks

Exposure to the aconomy

Centaur's products and markets are predominantly UK based and as a result the Group's performance is
broadly linked to the strength of the UK economy and general economic factors such as inflation, currency
fluctuation, interest rates, supply and demand of caplital and industrial disruption therefore have the potential to
affect the Group's operations, business and profitabllity While these macro-economic factors are beyond the
control of the Group, specific exposure to interest rate and currency risk is mmimal and In addifion the range of
markets served by Centaur's products together with the continuing strategy of extending the reach of
established brands and recent acquisitions through the delivery of new products in a diverse range of media
formats provides some ability to spread this exposure

Financing

Centaur had net debt at 30 June 2013 of £19 5m and a ratio of net debt to EBITDA of 1.5 times (adjusted to
include a provision for deferred consideration as part of net debt, the ratio was 1 9 tmes), comfortably below its
targeted leverage of below 2 times Failure to comply with any financial covenant could result in additional
finance costs and possible withdrawal of the fadliity. The Group constantly monitors its cash flows and
profitability and has operated within all its covenants throughout the year Its existing facllities expire in February
2016 and the Group will consider the refinancing of these facilittes In the financlal year ending 30 June 2015

Dependence on advertising

Advertising revenues represented 35% of Group revenue in the year ended 30 June 2013 (2012 43%) and
changes In advertising lrends, particularly away from traditional magazine formats could have an impact on the
Group's profitability However, the diversity of served markets and strength of brands, which In most cases
includes a number of market leading positions, together with continued brand diversification into alternative
media formats all serve to imit this exposure. In addition, the continued investment In digital and paid-for
content solutlons provides further opportunities to build more sustainable and less cyclical revenue streams that
will help to reduce the concentration of mare traditional forms of advertising within overall Group revenues

Growth strategy

The Group seeks to launch or acquire new digital products, events and other brand extensions. [t is essential
that the Group successfully develops and marketls these products and Integrates acquired businesses In order
to continue to grow The Group has an experienced management team in place with significant experience of
managing new product development and the integration of acquisitions

Competitor activity

A number of products exist that compete direclly or indirectly with those of the Group resuiling in a highly
competitive market Domestic and internationa! competitors market ther producls to the Group’s target
audiences. New technology, changing commerclal circumstances and new entrants to the markets in which the
Group operates, may adversely affect the Group's business. A key element of the Group's strategy 1s to
develop and maintain a deep understanding of the information needs of the markets it serves, its customers and
audiences As a result, the Group can continually adapt and develop existing products thus protecting market-
leading positions and thereby limiting the opporturities for compettors to secure an advantage.

Dependence on key personnel

The Group's future success Is substantially dependent on the continued services and continuing cantributions of
its Directors, senior management and other key personnel The loss of the services of any of the Group's
executive officers or other key employees could have a material adverse effect on the Group's business The
entraprensurial cullure of the Group and the incentive programmes in place enable the Group to attract and
retaln key personnel

Reliance on information systems

Certain divislons of the Group are dependent on the efficient and uninterrupled operation of ther IT and
computer systems and of services from third-party providers The Group has taken precautions to Iimit its
exposure to the rnisk of material disruption to systems
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Report of the Directors (continued)
Going concern

The Directors have carefully assessed the Group's ability to continue trading, particularly in the light of the
uncertain market conditions, and have a reasonable expectation that the Group and Company have adequate
resources to continue In operational existence for the foreseeable fulure

Net debt at 30 June 2013 amaounted to £19 5m (2012 £7 2m) The £40 Om revolving credit facility with the Royal
Bank of Scotland and Barclays continues to be In place, not explring untii February 2016 The continuing
strength of the Group's cash generation is reflected in the 112% conversion of adjusted operating profit into
operating cash flow during the year ended 30 June 2013 {page 20}

The Group has net current liablithes which arise from its normal high levels of deferred income which represent
timing differences relating to events In the future and subscriptions. An assessment of cash flows for the next
two financlal years, which has taken Into account this and the factors described above, has indicated an
expected lavel of cash generation which would be sufficlent to aliow the Group to fully satisfy its working capital
requirements, to cover all principal areas of expenditure including maintenance capital expenditure and taxation
duning this psniod and lo meet nterest payments, as they fall due, and the financial covenants under the
revolving credit facility.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
Statement of Directors’ responsibllities

The Direclors are responsibie for preparing the Annual Report, the Directors’ Report on Remuneration and the
financlal statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financlal year. Under that faw the
Directors have prepared the Group and parent Company financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. Under company law the Directors
must not approve the financial statemenls unless they are satisfied that they glve a true and fair view of the
state of affars of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that perfod In preparing
these financral statements, the Directors are required to

« select suitable accounting policles and then apply them consistently,
« make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

« state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is Inappropnate to presume that
the Company will continue In business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Company's transaclions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time ihe financial position of the
Company and the Group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements and the Directors’ Report on
Remuneration comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of
the 1AS Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and delection of fraud and other irregularities

The Directors are responsible for the mamntenance and integnty of the Company’s website Leglslation in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation
in other junisdictions

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are listed m the Beard of Direclors summary on page 23,
confirms that, to the best of their knowledge

« the Group financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
EU, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financlal position and profit of lha Group, and

« the Operational Review, Financial Review and Report of the Directors include a fair review of the
developmant and performance of the business and the position of the Group, together with a description of
the princtpal nsks and uncertainties that it faces.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
Disclosure of information to the auditors

The Directors confirm that, so far as the Directors are aware, there is no relevant audit Information of which the
Company’s auditors are unaware, and the Directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as
Direclors in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit informaton and to establish that the
Company's audltors are aware of that information

Independent auditors

A resolutton 1s to be proposed at the Annual General Mesling for the re-appoiniment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Corporate governance

The company's siatement on corporate governance can be found in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 31 to 39 of these financial statements. The Corporate Governance Report forms part of this Report of the
Directors and Is incorporated (nto it by cross-reference

By order of the Board

Claire Baty
Company Secretary

11 September 2013
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Corporate Governance Report
Statement of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code

The Board has prepared this report with reference to the UK Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) issued
by the Financlal Reporting Council in June 2010

The Board of Centaur Media plc 1s accountable to the Group's shareholders for good Carporate Governance
and in doing so is committed to the principles outlined in the Code as well as compliance with the Companies
Act 2008, the Listing Rules and the Disclosure and Transparency Rules.

The statement below describes how the principles of Corporate Governance are applied and the extent of the
Group's compliance with all relevant provisions of the Code.

The Group has complied with the Code throughout the financial year
Leadership
Role of the Board

The Group 15 controtled through its Board of Dirsctors. The Board recegnises its responsibility to the Company’s
shareholders It does this by providing entreprensurial leadership, whilst ensuring controls are established that
enable the effective monitoring and management of risk The Board s responsible for the Group’s systems of
Corporate Governance and is ullimately accountable for the Group’s activities and stralegy by ensuring the right
financial and human resources are In place

Operation of the Board
The Board held seven scheduled meetings during the year.

Board and Commitiee meefings are scheduled to ensure that adeguale time is given to consider and discuss all
agenda ltems

In addition to scheduled mestings Directors are avallable to hold telephonic and ad hoc meelings on matters
that need to be addressed outside the scheduled dates

The Board is accountable to sharehaolders for ensuring that the Group 1s appropriately managed and achieves
the strategic objectives agreed by the Board In accordance with the Code, the Board has established
guidelines requiring specific matters to be reserved for decision by the full Board of Directors, including

The commencement of any major new and/or different business activity

Material acquisitions and disposals

Material investments and capital projects

The Group’s internal controls and risk management policies, including insurance and material litigation
Ovaerall budgetary planning, treasury pianning and business strategy

Review of the functioning of the Board Committees

e & 2 & & @

Membaership of the Board and Its committees

As at 30 June 2013, the Board comprised a Non-Executive Charrman, one Executive Director and four Non-
Executive Directors Geoff Wilmot stepped down as Chief Executive Officer and resigned as a director on 24
May 2013 Mark Kerswell was appointed as Interim Chief Execulive Officer on 14 May 2013

Details of appointments, roles and backgrounds of the Directors are set out In the blographies on page 23 and
on the Group's website {www.centaur co uk) The Board bslteves that the Directors possess a wide range of
commercial, financlal and regulatory experience and ability which are relevant to the Group as a PLC in the
medtla sector
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Corporate Governance Report {continued)

Membership of the Board and its committees (continued)

The Board has established an Audit Committee, a Remuneration Committee and a Nomination Commiites with
formally delegated duties and responsibilities within written terms of reference prescribed by the Board, all of
which are available on the Group's website (www centaur co uk) Non-members may attend these committee
meelings by Invitation although no Director can attend a meeting, or part of a meeting, where he/she could have

a conftict of interest

During the year, the membership of the Board and of each commitiee was as follows

JPE Taylor

C Salterthwaite
C Morrison
RW Bovle

RS Miskin

MH Kerswall

GTD Wilmot

Board role

Chalrman

Sanilor Independent Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Execulive Director

Interim Chief Executive Officer
from 14 May 2013 (previously
Group Finange Director)

Chlaf Executive Officer until 14
May 2013

Maating attendance

Audit
Commilttee

Member
Membar
Chalrman

Remuneration
Committee

Member
Chairman

Member

Nomination
Committes

Chalrman
Member
Member

Member

The number of scheduled full Board meetings and Commiltee meetings during the year to 30 June 2013 along
with attendance of Directors was as follows

Number of meelings held

JPE Taylor
MH Kerswelf

C Salterthwaite

C Morrison
RW Boyle
RS Miskin

GTD Wimof (resigned 24

May 2013)

Scheduled
Board
Meetings

~N Sy~~~

Audit
Committes
Meetings

3

nfa
n/a

[

nfa
nfa

Remuneration
Committes
Meetings

4

nfa
nfa
3
4
nfa

nfa

Nomination
Committee
Weotings
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
Sub Committees

The Board on occasion appoints sub-committees consisting of at least two Directors 1n order lo finalise and
approve matters that have been approved in principle by the Board, subject to final amendments

A sub-committee of two Directors was appointed to approve the issue and allotment of shares in satisfaction of
employee share schemes

The Group has purchased appropnate insurance in respect of legal actions against Directors and officers
Division of responsibllities

There Is a clear division of responsibilities between the Non-Executive Chairman and the Chief Exacutive, which
has been set out In writing and agreed by the Board

The Chairman 1s responsible for:

Leading the Board
Ensuring the effectiveness and proper performance of the Board and of lis Directors and setting the
agenda for its meetings
Regularly updating the Directors en all matters relevant to them
Ensuring constructive relations between Executive and Non-Executive directors
Establishing effective communication with shareholders and ensuring that the Board understands their
views
s Regular contact with the Chief Executive

Patrick Taylor was appointed as Chairman on 10 December 2009 and was considered by the Board to meet the
independence criteria an his appointment

The Chief Executive’s responsibilities are

« Sething and implementing the overall strategy.
+ Overseeing the day-to-day management of the Group

+ The line management of senior executives

« Joinlly with the Chalrman, representing the Group externally

The Non-Executive directors consiructively challenge the performance of management both 1n board meetings
and outside Through the work of the audit commitiee, the Non-Executives are able to satisfy themselves on the
integrity of financial information and the robustness of financial controls and risk management systems,

During 2013 a strategy day was held where Executive Directors and members of senlor management met to
carry out a review of the strategy of the Group Non-Executive directors including the Non-Executive Chairman
participated in this process and helped to develop the proposals on strategy

Christopher Satterthwaite is the Senior Independent Direclor and is avallable to meet with shareholders if
required

The Non-Executive Directors have met together without the Executive Directors as required by the Code.

See Statement of Directars’ respansibilittes on page 29 for further detalls
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
Effectiveness

Composition of the Board

The Board Is satisfied that, as at 30 June 2013, all four Non-Executive Directors (Christopher Salterthwaite,
Colin Morrison, Robert Boyle and Rebecca Miskin} and the Non-Executive Chairman (Patrick Taylor) remain
independent according to the definition contained in the Code No Non-Executive Director

» has proviously been employed by the Group within the last five years,

+ has had a matenal business relationship with the Group within the last three years,

¢ recelves remuneration other than Director's fees,

¢ has close famlly ties with any of the Group's advisers, Directors or senior employees,

o holds cross-directorships or has significant tinks with other Directors through involvement in other
companies or bodies,

¢ represents a significant shareholder, or

¢ has served on the Board for mare than nine years

Colin Morrison was first elected as a diractor in 2004 and will not be offering himself for re-election at the Anpual
General Meating in November 2013 There is no current intention to replace Colin

Appointments to the Board

The Board has established a Nomination Committee with formally delegated duties and responsibilibies within
written terms of reference prescribed by the Board which are avallable on the Group's website
(www centaur co uk)

The Nomination Committee ensures the maintenance of a formal, rigorous and transparent procedure for the
appoiniment of new Directors to the Board The Nemlnation Commiltee 1s responsible for ensuring that the right
calibre of person and balance of skills is maintained on the Board This commiitee meets at least annually and
as required will make recommendations to the Board on new appolintments to the Board.

Following Geoff Wilmct's departure, the Nomination Committee has appointed an external executive search
firm, "The Up Group”, to recruit the Chief Execulive Officer, and this process is underway as at the date of this
report. The Up Group has no other connection with the Company

Patrick Taylor 1s the chalrman of the Nomination Committee ts other members are Colin Morrison, Christopher
Satterthwaite and Rebecca Miskin When the Nommnation Committee Is considering the appointment of a
successor o the Charman, Christopher Satterthwaite chairs this committee

Commitment

Patrick Taylor has disclosed his other significant commilments to the Board and i was salisfied that these did
not prevent him from giving adequale time to his role as Chairman

These commitments are

» Non-Executive Chalrman of his family owned company, Nonstop Adventure Limited,

» Non-Executive Director of a family owned hydro-electric generating company, The Lowwood Products
Company Limited, and

« Non-Executive Chairman of Skiplex Limited.

The terms and condtions of appointment of Non-Executive Directors are available for inspection at the
Company's registered office during normal business hours and at the AGM  The letters set out the expscted
time commftment of a minimum of two days per month, including attendance at regular board mestings,
attendance at the AGM, and appropnate preparation tme ahead of each meelting The agreement of the
Chairman 1s required before a Non-Execulive Directar accepts any additional commilments that might affect the
time thay are able to devote to thelr role as a Non-Execulive Director of the Group The Board is satisfied that
each of the Non-Exacutive Directors commits sufficient time to the business of the Group and contributes to the
governance and operations of the Group

Page 34




Centaur Media plc

Corporate Governance Report (continued)
Development

All new directors receive a full tnduction pack on joining the Board and undertake a number of induction
meetings throughout the business shortly after appomntment This includes meetings with major shareholders If
required

The chalrman reviews the tralning and development needs of each director on a continual basls and specifically
as part of the annual evaluation process The Company Secretary provides on-going training through the
regular dissemination of relevant legislative and regulatory updates and external reports.

Information and Support

The Directors receive Board and Commiltee papers in advance of each meeling These are circulated usually a
weak before the meetings and contaln prior minutes of all meetings, including sub-committees, as well as
reports from the Chief Executive Officer and Group Finance Director. On at least two occastons a year detailed
business focused reporis are provided and reported on by the divisional heads The Company Secretary also
submits a report for each mesting addressing legal, regulatory and governance matters.

The Board has a procedure through which the Directors are able to take independent advice in the furtherance
of their responsibilities, no such advice was sought during the year

The Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secrelary, Claire Baty, who is also
secretary to all the Board Committees In addition, the Company Secretary advises the Board on governance
matters and 1s rasponsible for ensuring that Board procedures are followed and that the Board complies with the
applicable rules and regulations

Evaluation

The Directors are constantly evaluated against performance and commitment fo their roles and duties as
Directors The Chairman addresses weakness and, where appropriate, proposes new members to be appointed
and seeks the resignations of Direclars of the Board.

Board performance self-evaluation questionnares were issued lo each Director during the year and these
questionnaires were analysed and a summary reported on to the Board by the Company Secretary. The
questionnalres covered the constitution and performance of the Board as a whole, its committees, its meetings,
its strategy, training provided and provision of information to Directors, relationships within the Board and with
staff members and a general overview of key Issues

The Chairman has met with each Director individually (in order to consider the performance of the said director,
the Committees and the Board as a whole The Non-Executive directors, led by the Senior Independent
Director, met during the year to evaluate the performance of the Chairman No matters of concern arose

The Direclors have considered the value of introducing an external evaluation of performance and have declded
that the Internal evaluation process is appropnate at the current time

Re-election

Under the Company's Articles all Direclors are subject to re-election at least every three years However, the
Board decided to recognise best practice in this area and have chosen to stand for re-election annually
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
Accountability
Financial and Business Reporting

The Board recognises its responsibility to present a true and balanced assessment of the Group's position and
prospects. The statement of directors’ responsibiities and disclosure of information to the auditors 1s set out on
pages 29 to 30

This annual report contains a balanced and understandable assessment of the business and its prospects in the
Chief Executive Review and Financial Review seclions on pages 6 to 22 An explanation of the business model
is contained in the Strategic Overview section of the Chief Executive Review on page 6. The Independent
Auditors’ Report on pages 52and 53 includes a statement by the auditor about thewr reporting responsibilities.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has accountabiiity for the effecliveness of the Group's system of risk management and internal
controls This relates to all controls, covering financlal, operational and compllance matters and Includes
processes for the preparation of the consolidated accounts

An on-going process, In accordance with the guldance of the Turnbull Committee on nternal control, Is
established for identifying, evaluating and managing risks faced by the Group [n reviewing the Group's risk
profile the fallowing categories of risk are considered- Competitor, Customer, Employes, Finance, Infrastructure
and systems, Market, Reputational, and Supplier These headings are then broken down into various risk
events and the likelihood of occurrence, potential severity and risk management processes and systems are
identified

The risk management process and systems of internal control are designed to only manage rather than
eliminate risk and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement and
loss The risk of fallure to achieve business objaclives has baen reviewed regularly throughout the year

The Board recognises that it is responsible for systems of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness, but
has delegated responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s system of risk management and
internal controls to the Audit Commities, which receives the relevant reports from various commiliees and
individuals to assist it In its assessment of these controls. It 1s the responsibliity of management to implement
Board policies on internal control

The Board through its committees is responsible for identifying, approving and enforcing policies on risk and
control The Group has a structure to monitor its key activities As part of its struciure, there Is a comprehensive
planning system with an annual budget approved by the Board The resulls of operating divisions are reported
monthly and compared to the budget Forecasts are prepared during the year

Page 36




Centaur Media plc

Corporate Governance Report (continued)
Risk Management and Internal Contro! {continued)

The key procedures, which the Directors have established with a view to providing effective internal controls,
are as follows:

Regular Board meetings to consider a schedule of matiers reserved for the Board's constderation
An annual review of corperate strategy, which includes a review of risks facing the business and how
these risks are monitored and managed on an on-going basis within the organisation

*» An established crganisational structure with clearly deflned lines of responsibllity and delegation of
authority

+ Documented and enforced policies and procedures
Appointment of staff of the necessary callbre to fulfil thelr allocated responsibilities

¢« Comprehenslve budgets and forecasts, approved by the Board, reviewed and revised on a regular
basis, with performance monitored against them and explanations obtained for material variances

s A detalled Investment approval process, requiring Board approval for major projects Post-investment
appralsals will be conducted and be reviewed by the Board

s An Audit Committee of the Board, comprising Non-Executive Directors, considers significant financial
contro! matters as appropriate

In addition the Executive Director runs formal meatings with senlor members of sach divislon on a monthly
basis. These discusslons address new product development opportunities as well as cperational matters

An Internal Control Review has been conducted by management and a report has been submitted to the Audit
Committee. No major control weaknesses were identified

Audit Committee

The Board has established an Audit Committee with formally delegated duties and responsibilities within written
terms of reference prescribed by the Board which are available on the Group's website {(www centaur co uk)

Raobert Boyle is the chalrman of the Audit Committee and has recent and relevant financial expetience its other
members are Colin Mornson and Christopher Satterthwaite See the Board of Directors summary on page 23
for further details on the experience of the members of the Audit Committes All members of this commitiee are
Non-Executive Directors.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice each year and has met three times during 2013 in additton the
Chairman meets with the external auditors at least annuaily on a one to one basis The Chief Executive Officer,
the Group Finance Director, the Group Financial Controller and exlernal auditors aitend for part or all of each
meeling The external auditors have unresiricted access to the Audit Committee and its Chairman

The Audit Commiltee consliders all matters relating io financial policles, internal control and reporting,
appointment and re-appointment of external auditors, the scope and resulis of the audits, the independence and
objectivity of the auditors and ensures that an effective system of internal financial control 1s maintained

To meet its responsibilities the Committee considered

» interim and preliminary announcements, together with any other formal announcements relating to
financial performance,

¢ the accounting principles, policles and procedures adopted in the Group's financial statements,
including, where necessary, challenging the judgements made, and

+ the potential effects of tax accounting and other significant judgemental and complex accounting Issuss
dealt with in the accounts
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Reappolntment of Auditors

Centaur's external auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have bsen In post since 2000, and for nine years as
auditors of a listed company (Centaur was hsted in March 2004) The Audit Commitiee has reviewed the
independence and effectiveness of the external auditors during the year including'

» the terms, areas of responsibifity, duties and scope of work of the external auditors as set out in the
angagement letter,

the external auditors' work plan for the Group,

the detailed findings of the audit, including a discussion of any major issues that arose during the audit,
the latter from PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP confirming its independence and objectivity, and

the audit fee and the extent of non-audit services provided by the exiernal auditors

. & & 0

The Audit Commiltee has recammended the reappointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP at the forthcoming
AGM, which the Board has fully accepted.

Non-audit services provided by Auditors

Centaur's external auditors may not provide any non-audit service that poses a significant threat to the auditors’
objectivity or independence Centaur's auditors have confirmed that they are independent and do se on an
annual basis During the year, with the approval of the Audit Committee, lha Corporate Taxatlon team of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, who are also the Company's auditors, provided taxation compliance and
advisory work to the Group The fee In respect of this work was £58,000. Other assurance fees of £94,000
{2012 £nil) were incurred In the year relating to an audience measurement project, of which, £47,0600 related to
2012 An analysis of the fees paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP during 2013 can be found in note 2 to the
financial statements.

Internal Audit

The Group does not have an internal audit function The Group belleves that the Internal controls established
are strong and that, given the relatively centralised structure of the finance funchion, an internal audit function
would not add value The Audit Committee annually reviews that position

Whistle blowing

The Audit Commiltee has reviewed arrangements for whistle-blowing and has put a policy in place The pclicy
encourages a culture of apenness and seeks to reassure employees that by reporting issues of concern they
will not suffer wichmisation or detriment Employees are required to raise 1ssues In the first instance with their
fine manager or, 1f this 1s a problem, with the Human Resources Direclor or in exceptional cases with the Chief
Executive Officer or Chairman of the Audit Committee

The Group is committed, whenaver appropriate, to investigate fully any concern raised in a timely manner and
where an Investigation confirms wrongdoing to take the necessary disciplinary or legal action The Group will,
wherever possible and without infringing confidentiality, keep the “whistleblower” informed of the outcome of
enqulries and decisions taken with regard to the matier Guidance 1s also given to raising matters externally.
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Remuneration Committee

Details of the Remuneration Committee are found on page 42
Relations with Shareholders

Communication with shareholders is given a high priority The Chref Executive Review and Financial Review
give a detalled averview of the business and future developmants There 1s regular dialogue between the
Executive Directors and institutional shareholders as well as presentations after the Group's preliminary
announcement of the year-end results and at the half year In addition financlal and cther information about the
Group is available on the Group's website and procedures are in place to ensure that the Board Is regularly
appnsed of shareholders’, analysts' and brokers' expressed views of the Group

Along with up to date detaills of the Group’s business activities copies of all the regulatory announcements can
be viewed on the Group's website (www centaur co uk) The website also contains downloadable copiles of the
annual and interim reports, investor presentations and General Meeting nolices and voting results,

The Board’s Intention 1s to use the Annual General Meeting on 13 November 2013 to communicate with private
and institetional investors and welcomes thelr participation The Chairman will aim to ensure that the Chairmen
of the Audit and Remuneration Committees are available at the Annual General Meeting, details of which can
bs found In the Notice of the Meeting

During the year Patrick Taylor, in his capacity as Chairman, has met with a number of the Group's largest
shareholders Christopher Satterthwaite, In his capacity as Senior Independent Director is available to meet with
any major shareholder at ther request

Detalls of share capital and stibstantiat shareholdings are given on page 24 and in note 21
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Corporate Social Responsiblility

The Board recognises the need for a clearly defined strategy and well defined policies in relation to the impact
of the Group's actvities on all its key stakeholders and the broader environment as a whole The Board has
therefore formulated an approach to Corporate Social Responsibiiity (CSR) which 1s both complementary to the
staled strategic objectives of the Group but also practical in terms of Implementation of policy and measurement
of results

People in Centaur

Centaur's success depends upon ils ability to keep developing new products and refreshing existing ones and
thal in turn depends upon our ability to altract and retain a highly motwated, entrepreneurial team of psople In
seecking to achieve this objeclive, we believe that the following are the most important factors for us to address

a, Giving our people a sense of ownership We encourage our people where appropriate {o have a strong
sense of Identity with their particular business unit or brand and to think like owners.

b. Maintalning unity around a common vislon, strategy and culture: We sesk to provide each of our
businesses with a corporate context of a clearly communicated vision and strategy and a common culture
We aim to achieve this through good communication on a number of levels In addition to a structure of
forrmal and informal divistonal meetings across the Group, which are attended on a monthly basls by the
Chief Executive Officer and Group Finance Director, a number of other mechanisms are used to retain a
corporale framework without diluting the strength derived from the devolved operating structure of the Group
as described above These include

+ The Group intranet which provides a regular update of news and corporate information.

s A regular monthly emall newsletter from the Chief Exscutive Officer which s circulated to all staff
highlighting recent new business developmaents, trading highlights and news on our people

+ Senlor managars’ altendance at periodic management seminars to promote and share best practice
across the Group. [n addition, senior managers recaive penodic updates In relation to the Group’s
trading performance from the Chief Executive Officer and Group Finance Direclor,

c. Providing competitive rewards: We aim to provide financial rewards and a range of assoclated benefits
that are compelitive within our sector Centaur's culture is mentocralic and In reviewing remuneration
packages, we seek to focus primarly on Individual performance During 2013 and previously, individual
reviews have been conducted throughout the year on the anniversary of joiming From 1 July 2013 onwards,
all reviews will take place during the summer, with annual pay reviews effective from 1 October of each year
A new on-line Performance and Development management tool has been implemented for the new
performance year to support this

o

Providing effective resources: Centaur's management style 1s inlended to Incorporate a high level of
coaching to support and promote superior performance This Is suppiemented by an in-house programme of
antry-lavel traning programmes We continue 1o successfully run the Centaur Tramning Academy, a more
extended training programme for new sales recruits

e. Listening to our staff: An employee engagement survey was completed in March 2013, and as a result
actions are being taken In various key areas mncluding office environment and facilities, Internat
communication, training and development, recognition and reward.

f. Refurbishing the Wells Street offices. An importan! element in our aim lo attract and retain motivated and
entreprenaurial people is our werking environmant To this end, Centaur is Investing in refurbishing the maln
Walls Street bullding, creating a modern, more open plan environment which encourages collaboration and
communication across the business
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The Environment

The Board 15 aware of the potential impact on the environment of the Group’s activittes and recognises iis
responslbility to the environment particularly with regard to its use of paper and print for magazines, disposal of
waste and recycling, packaging and distribution of magazines, use of toner Inks and in reducing its carbon
footprint pnmarily in its consumption of energy.

The policy of the Group is to consider the mpact on the environment as one of the factors when making
purchasing decisions and to regularly record and monitor the results of those declsions on the environment,
where prachical. The Director responsible for overseeing this policy is Mark Kerswell.

Purchase of paper and printing - The Group sources all its magazine paper grades from mills that hold
valid forestry certification scheme accreditation, which ensures its pulpis sourced from well managed and
sustainable forests, and have ISO 14001 and EMAS accraditation.

Centaur uses 100% recycled paper made from post-consumer recovered paper fibres on many of Its magazine
ttles and there Is an on-going initiative to increase recycled paper content over time with the aim of reducing the
Group's CO; carbon footprint,

Disposal of waste and recycling — A recycling Inihative 1s in place across the Group and this continues to
ensure that around 50% of office waste I1s recycled.

Packaging and distribution of magazines - Lighter weight plastic that can be recycled has been adopted
where appropriate and tight controls are exercised on print runs and waslage levels

Toner Inks — All toner cariridges and computer equipment continue to be recycled where possible. In order to
reduce the consumption of toner cartridges, computers are linked to photocopiers for printing purposes in most
areas of the business

Energy consumption

In reporting on energy consumption and in comparing numbers from year to year the Group is consclous that
the figures can be affected by climatic differences and employee numbers betwsen reporling years. These
factors should be taken into account

The numbers for the 12 months to 30 June 2013 and the comparatives for the prior year are as follows.

2013 2012
Energy consumption {(CO, tonnes) ! 469 549
Electricity (MwH) 894 936
Ol (000 litres) ? . 18
Notes on the above table
1 The CO; tonnes represent the CO; equivalent of the eleclrcity and oll consumed during the year The calcutation is based on the

conversion factor provided by the National Energy Foundation

2 Healing oll was only used at one of the Group's premises, which has now bean vacated
3 Water Is supplied by the landlords, except for one bullding, so the majosity of the figures are unavaltable

The Community

It is Group policy to not make corporate contributions {o political parties and the Group has no intention of using
the authority that it has under Companies Act 2006 to do so  During the year, the Group has supported a
nominated chanty as chosen by staff Details of donations made are Included in the Report of the Directors

Page 41




Centaur Media pic

Directors’ Report on Remuneration

Annual Statement

As Chairman of the Remuneration Commiltee, | am pleased lo introduce our Report on Directors’ Remuneration
for the year ended 30 June 2013 While the UK Government's reforms on Directors' pay published recenlly by
the Department for Business, innovation & Skills will not formally impact the Company untl next year, the
Committee has sought to comply with a number of the new requirements early in the interests of best practice.
Therefore, this report has been split into three sections,

o This Annuat Statement which summarises and explains the major decisions and changes for 2014 in
raspect of directors' remuneration,

o ADlrectors' Remunsration Policy which sets out the 2014 remuneration policy for the Company’s
directors, and

o An Annual Report on Remuneration which provides details of the remuneration earned by the Company's
directors in relation to the year ended 30 June 2013.

We will be seeking your support for each part of the report by way of a single advisory vote at the forthcoming
AGM

Remuneration Pollcy for 2014

The Committee has carrled out a review of the senior execulive incentive policy at the Company with a specific
focus on the Executive Direclors The principal conclustons of the review, which primarly reflect the
Committee’s objective of simplifying arrangements and adopting best practice where relevant, are as follows

o Base salary levels remain broadly appropriate;

o Annual bonus potentiai should continue to be limited to 100% of salary for Execulive Directors However,
instead of 100% of the bonus being based on adjusted profit before tax (PBTA) as operated for the year
ended 30 June 2013, 80% of the bonus will be based on shding scale PBTA targets, and 40% on sliding
scale revenue growth targets This rebalancing should ensure that the management team focuses on both
revenue and earnings growth Further, instead of 100% of the bonus being payable In cash, the Commiltee
will introduce a deferral element Therefore, starling with the 2013/14 financial year, any annual bonus
equivalent to more than 75% of basic salary will be pald as Centaur Media plc shares and deferred for 3
years,

o The 2010 Senior Exscutive Long Term Incentive Plan (SELTIP), which has reached the end of ils first 3
year plan perlod, Is considered to be too complicated and not sufficiently aligned to the iong-term
Therefore, the Committee intends to revert to a conventional long-term incentive policy delivered through
the existing Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) which was approved by shareholders at the 2006 AGM. The
Committee will adopt a market conslistent annual grant policy whereby Execulive Directars will recelve LTIP
awards over shares with a value equal to 100% of base satary The first grants under the policy are
expected lo be made shorlly Reflecting the objective of incentivising long-term earnings growth and total
shareholder return, 50% of the 2013 LTIP award will be based on absolute adjusted earnings per share
targets and 50% of the 2013 LTIP award will be based on relalive total shareholder return ("TSR")
measured against the constiluents of the FTSE SmallCap {(excluding wnvestment lrusts),

o Shareholding guidelines have been introduced for Execulive Directors, who are expected to retain 50% of
the net of tax LTIP awards until they have a holding of shares with a value equivalent to 100% of satary, and

o Clawback provisions have been intraduced into both the annual bonus and LTIP plans

The Committee believes that the changes set out above, which were consulted upon with the Company’s major
investors and representative bodies, will simphfy the Company's remuneration policy and align it with best
practice. The Group is currently In the process of recrulting a Chief Executive Officer and intends to apply the
revised 2014 policy to this appointment

C Morrison
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, 11 September 2013
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Directors' Remuneration Policy
Remuneration Policy

Centaur recognises the need 1o attract, retain and incentivise executives with the appropriate skifls and talent to
manage and devslop the Group's businesses In such a way as to drive the Group's strategy and delver

shareholder value The main principles of Centaur’s executive remuneration policy are

To achieve tolal remuneration packages that are competitive in the sector within which the Group

operates and with the market in generai,

To provide an approprate balance belween fixed and variable remuneration which rewards high levels

of performance; and
To incentivise and retaln management and to align their interests with thosa of shareholders

The various elements of Executive Directors' remuneration packages for 2014 are summarised below:

Summary Remuneration Policy Table

€ Purpose and link to Performance
g strategy Operation Maximum targets
i
= Reflacts the value of the » Reviewad annually, effective 1 * Annual *nfa
individual and their role October {moved from July o align | increases
« Refiacts skills and with wider workforce) typically linked
g experience over time = Paid in cash on a monthly basis, ‘lz’ig‘ose ‘:'zrthe
% 1 .provides an approprate pensionable or worklerce
g level of basic fixed income | = Takes pariodic account against
avolding excessive risk companies with simifar
ariging from over reliance characleristics and sector
on vanable income comparators
* Incentivises annual » Pald In cash on publication of = 100% of salary | = For 2014 PBTA
§ delivery of financial and annual resulls {60%), and
2 strategic goals * Not pensionable revenue {40%)
§ | “Maximum bonus only » Deferral introduced for any bonus
E; payable for achieving over 75% of bage satary
demanding targets
= Aligns to maln strategic = Annual grant of condilionai » Awards capped | = 50% of award
E objectives of dslivering awards or nil cost oplions granted at 100% of linked to EPS
pd profit growth and under the LTIP with a 3 year salary targets, and 50%
§ 3 shareholder return vesting period to TSR
* Providss compettive = Deflnad contributions made to = Company "n/a
e retirement benefits Executive Director's own pension contributes
9 lans between 9%
@ » Provides an opportunity for P
g Exacullve Diractor to and 17 5% of
o contribute to thelr own salary
relirement plan
» Alds retantion and » Company car allowance and the *nfa =nfa
. recruilmant proviston of pnvate medical
§ a Insurance
= To provide alignment of = Executive Diraectors are required »100% of salary | "n/a
Interssts befwsen to build and mawntain a specified
E Executive Directors and sharsholding in Company shares
(7] shareholders
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Directors’ Report on Remuneration (continued)
Detalled Romuneration Pollcy

1. Base Salary

In determining base salaries, the Committee customarily benchmarks salary levels for comparable roles at
media companies of a similar size to Centaur and considers matters such as Infiation, the individual's
responsibilities, the Group’s performance and the salary pohicy throughout the Group as a whole Salary levels
are reviewed annually

in selting remuneration levels, the pay and employment conditions of employees within the Group are also
taken into account In this regard, the salary of the previous Chief Executive Officer, Geoff Wilmot was increased
by 3.5% from 1 July 2012 in line with the guidelines Issued for other employees In the Group

Mark Kerswell's salary was Increased by 5% from £220,000 to £231,000 on 1 July 2012 as the Remuneralion
Committee deems that his skills and expenence are of strategic importance for the business. Mark was
subsequently appointed as Interim Chief Executive Officer with effect from 15 May 2013 and, in addition to his
current salary, he recewves a £3,000 per month (or part of month) temporary supplement in recognition of the
additional responstbilities, which will continue for as long as he remains in post as Interim Chief Executive Officer.

The Group has changed the annual pay review cycle to 1 October of each year and so the Executive Director
salaries will be reviewed on that date

2 Annual Bonus

The Committee considers it important that a significant proportion of Executive Directors’ remuneration be
structured so as to link rewards to corporate and individual performance

Executive Directors are ellgible for an annual bonus dependent on the achievement of targets which take
account of corporate performance. These targets are reviewed annually and new objectives set by the
Committee for each Direclor at the start of the financial year Under this scheme, in 2013 the Executive
Directors had a maximum bonus opportunity equivalent to 100% of base salary

The annual bonus scheme for Executive Directors In 2013 was based on adjusted profit before taxation (PBTA),
to ensure a strong focus on profit recovery, and because PBTA 1s the financlal measure most commonly used
by analysts and investors In assessing the performance of the business The 2013 PBTA bonus targels were
not met and therefore no bonus was paid

For 2014, the annual bonus plan will continue to be Iimited to 100% of salary for Executive Directors. However,
instead of 100% of the bonus being based on adjusted profit before tax (PBTA), 60% of the bonus will be based
on siding scale PBTA targets, and 40% on sliding scale revenue growth targets This rebalancing should
ensure that the management team focuses on both revenue and earnings growth In addition, instead of 100%
of the bonus being payable in cash, any annual bonus equivalent to more than 75% of basic salary will be paid
as Centaur Media plc shares and deferred for 3 years

3. Pension

There is no Group executive pension scheme The Group makes a contribution of 8% of salary to Mark Kerswell's
mdividual pension scheme, and prior to the termination of his contract, made contributions of 17 5% of salary to
Geoff Wilmot's individual pension scheme The Group makes contributions of between 3% and 9% of salary for
other employees, dependent on their senfority
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Detalled Remuneration Policy (continued)
4. Long term Incentive awards

Following a raview of long-term incentive provision and in light of feedback recelved from investors and
representative bodiss, the Commitlee has concluded that the SELTIP, which reached the end of its first 3 year
period n 2013, 18 too complicated and not sufficlently aligned to the long-term

Therefore, the Committee Intends to revert to a conventional long-term Incentive policy delivered through the
existing Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP} which was approved by shareholders at the 2006 AGM  The Board
beliaves that this will satisfactorily link reward with performance and will incentivise key managament fo deliver
long-term shareholder value

The Committee will adopt 2 market conslstent annual grant policy whereby Executive Directors will receive LTIP
awards over shares with a value equal to 100% of base salary The first grants under the policy are expected to
be made shorlly Refiecting the objective of incenlivising long-term earnings growth and total shareholder return,

e  50% of the 2013 L.TIP award wil! be based on shding scale absolute adjusted earnings per share targets,
Absolute, rather than inflation-linked percentage growth targets will be operated for the initlal grants given that
the low 2012/13 base EPS mads selting percentage growth targets difficull, although the Commitiee will keep
this under review for future grants, EPS targets are still in the process of being finalised for these 2013 awards
and full disclosure will be provided in the London Stock Exchange announcement which will be published
shortly after the awards are granted, and

s 50% of the 2013 LTIP award will be based on relative total shareholder return ("TSR") measured against the
constituents of the FTSE SmallCap {excluding investment trusls) 25% of this part of an award will vest for
median TSR, increasing pro-rata to 100% vesling for upper quartile TSR over the three years ending 30 June
2016 In addition to the TSR performance condition, the Committese will need to be salisfied that the
Company's TSR performance reflects the underlying financlal performance of the Company for this part of an
award to vest

The Group operates a Share Incentive Plan which is open 1o all employses, including Executive Diractors, and
has a number of legacy long-term incentive arrangements and share option plans These are described in
detall in Note 22 to the Annual Report

5. Clawback

Consistent with best practice, clawback provistons have been introduced into the annual bonus and LTIP rules.

6. Share Ownership Guidelines

Shareholding guidelines have been intraduced for Executive Directors, who are expected to retain 50% of the
net of tax LTIP awards untl they have a holding of shares with a value equivalent to 100% of salary
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Directors’ Report on Remuneration (continued)
Other remuneration matters
Director's Service Agreements

Mark Kerswelf's service agresment is dated 11 October 2011, and Geoff Wilmot's conlract was dated 27 February
2004

Executive Director's contracts have no fixed term of office, have a notice perlod of 12 months and provide for
termination of employment within 14 days with payment in lieu of notice. Where the Company lerminates a
contract, any damages to which the Executive Director may be entilled shall be calculated In accordance with
ordinary common law principles Including those relating to mitigation of loss.

Patrick Taylor, Colin Mornson, Christopher Satterthwaite, Robert Boyle and Rebecca Miskin are Non-Executive
Directors The Non-Executive Directors have letters of appointment with the Company, which are for an initial
three-year period with an extension for a further three-year period, and provide for a notice period of one month
All existing Directors have chosen to submit to annual re-election at each AGM

Non-Executive Directors

The Non-Executive Directors receive a fee for their services, which 1s dependent on which commiltees they
serve or whether they act as Chalrman of commiltees, and the reimbursement of incidental expenses In
addition a payment of £1,500 per working day Is made In respect of any perlod during which it 1s agreed by the
Board that the time commitment Is significantly longer than envisaged under the terms of the appointment as a
result, for example, of a major corporate transaction

Total Shareholder Return

The Group's new LTIP will be based on the performance of the FTSE Smallcap (excluding investment trusts)
This index 1s considered to be most representative of the performance of the shares of generally comparable
companles The graph below shows the lotal shareholder return (TSR) of Centaur Medra pic compared to the
performance of this index over the last five years.

Total Shareholder Return
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This graph shows the value, by 30 June 2013, of £100 1nvested in Centaur Media plc on 30 June
2008 compared with the value of £100 invested 1n the FTSE Small Cap Index (excluding
TInvestment Trusts) The other points plotted are the values at intermediate financial year-ends,

e=mes Centaur Media —wse FTSE Smalt Cap (excl Investment Trusts)
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Directors’ Report on Remuneration (continued)

Total Shareholder Return (continued)

The graph below shows the total shareholder return (TSR) of Centaur Media plc compared to the performance of
the FTSE 350 Media Index over the last five years This has been included for comparability with the prior year's

report

Total Sharcholder Return
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This graph shows the value, by 30 June 2013, of £100 invested in Centaur Media plc on 30 June
2008 compared with the value of £100 mvested in the FTSE 350 Media Index  The other points
plotted are the values at intermedsate financial year-ends

[ e Centaur Media -~ FTSE 350 Med1a |
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Annual Report on Remuneration

Directors’ Emoluments {Audited)
The table below provides detalls of Directors' remuneration from Centaur Media plc for the year ended 30 June
2013

Sataries Termination Bonus Benefits Subtotal Penston Car Total Total
and fees payments In Kind* Allowance 2013 2012
Executive
M H Karswell ! 237,000 - - 2,329 239,329 20,604 - 269,933 261,015
GTD Wilmot ? 259,169 384,704 - 3,497 647,370 45,354 18,000 711,724 363,321
Non-Execufive
JPE Taylor 80,000 - - - 80,000 - - 80,000 80,000
C Morrison 40,000 - - - 40,000 - - 40,000 40,000
C Satterthwalte 40,000 - - - 40,000 - - 40,000 40,000
R Boyle 35,000 - - - 35,000 - - 35,000 35,000
R Miskin 40,000 - - - 40,000 - - 40,000 40,000
Former Directors® - - - - - - - - 112,699
731,169 384,704 - 5826 1,121,699 65,958 19,000 1,206,657 972,035

1 In addition to M H Kerswell's base salary {Increased from £220,000 to £231,000 from 1 July 2012), he recelves an addllionat supptement
of £3,000 per monih (or part of month) lo refiect the additionat respensibliities with respect to serving as Interim Chief Execullve from 16
May 2013 This supplement will continue for as long as he remalns the Interim Chlaf Executive

2, As announced on 15 May 2013, GTD Wiimat stepped down as Chlef Executive Officer, and resigned from the board of Centaur Media plc on
24 May 2013 In accordance with the terms of his service agreement, a payment of £384,704 was made, comprising an amount equivalent to
12 months’ pay in lleu of notice (ie safary, penslon, car alowance and private health Insurance) and £30,000 In conslderation for walving
certaln employment fights Mo amounts were pald [n respect of annual bonus for the year ended 30 June 2013 or in respect of annual bonus for
the notics perfod No SELTIP award was made for 2013, however 185,137 2011 awards end 116,081 2012 awards vested on the date of
departure under the plan rules and remaln exarcisable for a window of 6 months fram he date of departure  The markel value of these awards
at the date of departure was £103,167. In addition, Mr Wilmot's outstanding vested options under the 2004 Option Plan (587,333) remain
exercisable for a 6 month period from the date of departure These options were underwater at the date of departure

3 MJ Lally resigned on 10 October 2011

4 Olher benefits for Executive Directors during this year include life assurance, permansnt heallh Insurance and medical Insurance
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Annual Report on Remuneration {continued)

Directors’ Interests (Audited)

The Directors holding office during the year to 30 June 2013 are shown on page 32 and their beneficial interesls
in the Company's share capital are shown on page 25. None of the Directors had any beneficial interest in the
shares of other Group companies The following Direstors hold awards under the Company’s various iegacy
incentive arrangements as follows,

Date of  Earilest Exercise Number  Granted Lapsed  Number

grant  exerclse Explry price at 1 July In year In year at 30 June

Scheme date date  {pence) 2012 hdk 2013*

MH Retention Plan 301211 300613 311214 - 170,000 - - 170,000
Kerswall? SELTIP' 221012 150913 150922 - - 173,678 {86,789) 86,789

170,000 173,578 {86,789y 266,789

GTD 2004 Option Plan 50304 90307 311213 1000 587,333 - - 587,333
Wilmot® RoltoverPlan 80304 80305 90314 41 67 172,777 - (172,777) -
2004 Option Plan 201008 300612 291018 5175 800,000 - (800,000) -

SELTIP' 150811 150513 31,1213 - 370,274 - (185137 185,137

SELTIP' 221012 150513 311213 - - 232,462 {116,081) 116,081

1,930,384 232,162 (1,273,905) 888,551

* Or at date of cessatllon if eartler

1 For financlal years 2011 {o 2013, the primary long-term incentive arrangement in operation was The Centaur Medla ple 2010 Senior
Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “SELTIP®) This plan will not be used golng forward The key features of the SELTIP were as follows

s At the beginaing of the Plan Pedod of three financial ysars, participants received an Award of Bonus Units There was a maximum
coniribution of 100% of equivalent of salary per annum that could be atinbuted to the value of a Participant's Award of Bonus Unlts In
respect of any finandlal year

«  The Remuneralion Committee set the Threshold Profit at the beginning of each financlal year

« Performance was measured at three Measurement Dales (at lhe end of each financlal year) At each Measurement Date up to 30% of the
growlh In PBTA above a threshold level was converted into restricted shares to create the Bonus Pool

+  Atthe end of the threa year Plan Period 50% of the award of Bonus Units is capable of vesting with the balance of the Bonus Unlis capable
of vesting 12 months later subject o the following conditfons
o  The vasting of alf Bonus Units shall be subject to the Participant’s continued employment at tha relevant dates, and
o 50% of ihe Bonus Units subject to Awards to Executive Directors are only capable of vesting based on the Company's comparative

total shareholder retum (“TSR") compared to the constituents of the FTSE Small Cap Index measured over the three year Plan
Period 40% of this part of an award would vest for medlan TSR increasing pro-rata to 100% vesting for upper quartile TSR over
the three years ending 30 June 2013 The inclusion of the TSR performance condition in relation to 50% of the Bonus Uniis held by
Executive Direclors ensured alignment of participants' interests with shareholders
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Directors’ Interests (Audited) (continued)

Awards of bonus units were made In 2011, 2012 and 2013 as summansed in the following table

Flnanclal | Threshold | PBTA Profit SELTIP Total Bonus pool | Number of Shares Shares
year profit achieved | growth contribufion | bonus allocated* shares awarded o | awarded to
pool awarded in M H GTD Wilmot
total** Kerswell
2011 £4 Om £6 5m £2 5m 20% £04m £0 4m 711,621 - 370,274
2012 £6 6m £8 Om £1.5m 0% £0 dm £0.3m 788,696 173,578 2324624
2013 £8 Om £8 6m £06m 30% £0 im £0 1m e s -

*The Remuneralion Committes did not allocate the entire bonius poof In 2012 or 2013

‘* Awards are only matle o participants with continuing employment

*** The 2013 awards will ba converted to restncled shares on 12 Seplember 2013 based on the share pnce af the closs of business on 11
Saplember 2013

v £002 of thase shares have subsequontly lapsed due fo failure of the TSR performance condifion

Itis Intendead that the awards will be funded from the employee benefit trust

2 M H Kerswell exercised 85,000 Retentlon Plan options on 1 July 2013 Tha market price on the dale of exercise was 34 Op

3 GTD Wiimot resigned as g director on 24 May 2013

4 The market price at 30 June 2013 was 34 25p (2012 34 68p) and the range during the year was 20.25p to 59 5p (2012 28 76p to
46 81p) The average markel price dunng the year was 43 59p (2012, 34 82p)

Sharesave (Audited)
The following Directors have been granted options over ordinary shares of 10p each in the Company under the

terms of the Centaur UK Sharesave Plan 2008 and 2009

Earllest Exercise Number Number

Date of  exercise Expiry price at30June at30June

grant date dato {pence) 2012 2013

GTD Wilmot 300409 010712 0101.13 2092 43,738 -

(resigned 24 May 2013)

GTD Wilmot exercised 43,738 options under the SAYE scheme on 2 July 2012  The market price on the
date of exercise was 35 Op
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Consideration of Matters Relating to Directors Remuneration
The Remuneration Committee

The Board has established a Remuneration Commitiee with formally delegated duties and responsibifitles within
written terms of reference prescribed by the Board which are available on the Group's websits
fwww.centaur.co uk) Colin Morrison chaired the Remuneration Committee during the year, and its other
members are Christopher Satterthwaite and Rebecca Miskin  All members of this Committee are independent
Non-Executive Direclors The Company Secretary Claire Baty acts as secrefary to the Committes The
Chalrman, Chlef Executive Officer or the Group Human Resources Director may be Invited to altend meetings, if
the Remuneration Cormmitiee cansiders it appropriate

Assistance to the Committee

During the year, the Committee appointed external remuneration consultants, New Bridge Street, who do not
perform any other services for and has no other connection with the Company, The Committee I1s free to
choose Its advisors and is satisfied that New Bridge Street provides advice that 1s objective and independent

The Committee recelved assistance from the Company Secretary and, where requested by the Committes, the
Chlef Executive Officer and the Group Human Resources Director The Committee has constdered feedback
received from major shareholders and considers the reports and recommendations of shareholder
representative bodies and corporate governance analysts

Responslihilities and activities of the Committee

The Remuneration Committee is rasponsible for monitoring, reviewing and making recommendations to the
Board at least annually on the broad policy for the remuneration of Executive Directors, the Chairman and
Company Secretary. It also determines ther indwvidual remuneration packages, inciuding pension
arrangements, bonuses and all incentive schemes and the determination of targets for any performance-related
pay schemes operated by the Group - asking the Board, when appropriate, to seek shareholder approval for any
long-term incentive arrangements, bonuses, incentive payments and any compensalion payments and share
option entitlements. In addition the Committee monitors and recommends the level and structure of
remuneration for senlor management

The Remuneration Committee meets at least twice each year and met four fimes in 2013. New Bridge Streat
attends Commiltee meetings where needed to provide technical supporl The Commiftee Chalir has a standing
jtem on the agenda at each main board mesting which provides the opporlunity to update on and raise
remuneration matters for discussion by the Board Minutes of the Committee are circulated to the Board once
they have baen approved by the Committee.

Preparation of This Report

This Drrectors’ Report on Remuneration has been prepared by the Remuneration Commiittee m accordance with
Directors’ Remuneration Report (2008) Regulations, the Listing Rules and the UK Corporate Governance Code
relating to Directors' remuneration While the Company Is not formally impacted untl next year, the Committee
has also sought to early adopt a number of the new requirements on Directors’ pay disclosure recently
published by the Department for Business, Innovation & Skills in the Interests of best practice

On behalf of the Board

C Morrison
Chalrman of the Remuneration Commiftee
11 September 2013
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Centaur Medla Plc

We have audiled the financlal statements of Centaur Media ple for the year ended 30 June 2013 which
comprise tha Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and Company Statements
of Changes in Equity, Balance Sheets {Consolidated and Company), Cash Flow Statements (Consolidated and
Company) and the related notes The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs} as adopted by the European Union and,
as regards the parent company financial statements, as applied In accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006.

Respective respensibllities of Directors and auditors

As explained more fully In the Directors' Responsibilities Staterment set oul in the Report of the Directors, the
Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfisd that they give a
true and fair view Our respensibiity is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinlons, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, In
giving these opinions, accept or assume responstbility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this
report fs shown or Into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing
Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit Involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures In the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial slatements are free from matenial misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of. whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
Group’s and Company's circumslances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the overall presentation of the
financlal statements In addition, we read all the financtal and non-financial information in the Annual Report to
identify matenal iconsistenctes with the audited financial slatements If we become aware of any apparent
material misstalements or inconsistencles we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements
in aur gpinfon-

. the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and Company's affarrs as at
30 June 2013 and of the Group's foss and the Group's and Company's cash flows for the year then
ended,

. the Consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopled by the European Union,

’ the Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted
by the European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006,
and

. the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006 and, as regards the Consolidated financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Compantes Act 2008

In our opimon

. the part of the Directors’ Report on Remuneration to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2008,

. the information given in the Report of the Diectors for the financlal year for which the financial
statemants are prepared i1s consistent with the financlal statements; and

. the information given in the Corporate Governance Report set out earlier with respect to internal control
and risk management systems and about share capital structures 18 consistent with the financial
statements
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Matters on which wa are required to report by exception

Woe have nothing to report In respect of the following'

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion.

L]

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

the Company financlal statements and the part of the Report on Directors’ Remuneration to be audited
are not in agreament with the accounting records and returns, or

cortain disclosures of Directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

wea have not receivaed all the information and explanations we require for our aud; or

a corporate governance statament has not been prepared by the parent company.

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review.

the Directors’ statement, set out earlier, in relation to going concern,

the parts of the Corporate Governance Report relaling to the company’s comphance with the nine
provistons of the UK Corporate Governance Code specifled for our review, and

certain elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on Directors’ remuneration,

B 72 A

Philip Stokes (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behaif of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

11 September 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2013

Adjusted AdJusting Statutory Adjusted Adjusting Statutory
Results ltems Results Results ltems Resulls
2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 1 72.0 - 72.0 656 - 656
Net operating expenses 2 (62.2) {44.7)  (106.9) (57.0) (53) (62.3)
Operating profiti{loss) 9.8 (44.7) {34 9) 86 (53) 33
Finance costs 4 {1.2) {1.3) {2.5) (0 6) - {0 6)
Profit/{loss) before tax 8.6 {46.0) (37.4) 80 (53) 27
Taxaton {charge)credit 8 (2.2} 12 {1.0) (2 2) 08 {14)
Profit/{loss) for the year attributable
to owners of the parent 84 (44.8) (38.4) 58 (4 5) 13
Total comprehansive Income/(loss)
attributable to owners of the parent 6.4 {44.8) (38.4) 5.8 (45) 13
Earnings/(loss) per share attributable
to owners of the parent 7
Basic 4 5p (27.3p) 42p 0.9p
Fully diluted 4 5p (26 8p) 41p 09p

Page 54




Centaur Media plc

Consolidated Statement of Changes Iin Equity for the year ended 30 June 2013

Attributable to owners of the parent

Reserve
for shares
Share Own Share tobe Deferred Retalned
capitaf  shares premium Issued shares earnings Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 July2011 16.0 (10 3} 0.7 33 01 1163 1241
Profit for the year and total
comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - 13 13
Transactions with owners.
Divdends (note 23) - - - - - (29) {29)
Share based payments.
Share opliens exercisad - (0.2) - - - - {02)
Falr value of employse senices
{note 22) - - - 03 - - 03
As at 30 Juna 2012 150 {10.5) 07 3.6 0.1 1137 122 6
Loss for the year and total
comprehensive loss
for the year - - - - - {38.4) (38 4)
Transactions with owners®
Dividends (note 23) - - - - - (33) (33)
Share based payments’
Share options exercised - 0.4 - - - . 04
Falr value of employee senices
{note 22) - - - 03 - - 03
As at 30 June 2013 15.0 {10.1) 0.7 39 0.1 72,0 81.6

At 30 June 2013, 7,318,291 (2012 8,964,507) 10p ordinary shares are held in treasury and 1,693,673 (2012.
1,813,762) 10p ordinary shares are held it an employee benefit trust

The 800,000 deferred shares of 10p each carry restricted voting rights and carry no right to receive a dividend
payment in respect of any financial year

The changes to the reserve for shares to be issued during the year ended 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2012

represent the total charge for the year relating to equitly-setiled share based payment transactions with
employees as accounted for under IFRS 2
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30 June 2013

Attributable to owners of the company

Reserve
for shares
Share Oown Share tobe Deferred Retalned
capital shares premlum lssued shares earnings Total
£m £m Em £m £m £m £m

At 1 July2011 150 (88) 67 33 o1 1307 1410
Loss for the year - - - - - (186) (1 6}
Transactions with owners
Divdends (note 23) - - - - - 29) 29
Share based payments
Falr value of employee semvices
(note 22) - - - 03 - - 03
As at 30 June 2012 16.0 (8.8) 0.7 3.6 0.1 126 2 1368
Totat comprehensive
loss for the year - - - - - (13 8) {13 8)
Transactions with owners
Divdends (note 23) - - - - - (3 3} (33)
Share based payments
Share ophons exarcised - 04 - - - - 04
Fair value of employee senices
(note 22) - - - 03 - - 03
As at 30 June 2013 156.0 (8.4) 0.7 3.9 041 109.1 120.4

The company has taken advantage of the exemption avallable under section 408 of the Campanies Act 2006
and has not presented its own statement of comprehensive income in these financial statements The parent
company's loss amounted to £13 8m {2012 loss of £1 6m)
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Reglstered number 049480738
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2013

2013 2012
Note £m £m
Non-current assets
Goodwill 8 98.9 1213
Other intangible assels ] 238 15.4
Property, plant and squipment 10 2,0 23
Deferred income taxassels 20 15 0.8
126 2 139.8
Current assets
Inventories 12 20 i1
Trade and other recelvables 13 161 135
Cash and cash equivalents 14 3.3 53
214 199
Total Asselts 147.6 1597
Current llablliiles
Trade and cther payables 16 {11.8) (10.0}
Deferred income 17 {14 3) (113}
Current income taxliabiiities 18 {14) (0 8)
Borrowings 15 - -
Provisions 19 {3.1) (¢ 3)
{30 4) (22 4)
Net current liabllitles (9.0) (2 5)
Non-current llabliities
Borrowings 15 (227) (12 5)
Provislons 10 {99) (12}
Deferred income taxliabililles 20 (30) (1.0)
(35.6) (14.7)
Net assets 81.8 1226
Capital and reserves attributable to owners of the parent
Share capltal 21 150 150
Own shares (10.1) {10 5}
Share premium 07 07
Cther resarves 40 37
Ratained earnlngs 72.0 1137
Total equity 81.6 1226

The financial statements on pages 54 to 105 were approved by the Board of Directors on 11 September 2013
and were signed on its behalf by.

sne=

M H Kerswell
Interim Chief Executive Officer
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Registored number 04948078
Company Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2013

2013 2012
Note £m £Em
Non-current assots
Investments 11 134.0 146 2
134.0 146 2
Current assets
Trade and othsr receivables 13 9.5 3t
Cash and cash equivalents 14 0.1 -
9.6 31
Total Assets 143.8 149 3
Current labliities
Borrowings 156 0.2 02
Trade and other payables 16 {0.8) (0 5)
(0.8) (03)
Net current assets 9.0 28
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 16 (22.8) (12 2)
(22.8) (12 2)
Net assets 1204 1368
Capltal and reserves attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital 21 160 150
Own shares {8.4) (8 8)
Share premium o.r 07
Other reserves 4.0 37
Retained earnings 1091 126 2
1204 1368

Total equity

The financial statements on pages 54 to 105 were approved by the Board of Directors on 11 September 2013

and were signed on its behalf by

oI >

M H Kersweli

Interim Chief Executive Officer
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Centaur Media plc

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year anded 30 June 2013

2013 2012
Note £m £m
Cash flows from opsrating activities
Cash generated from operations 24 8.3 83
Tax paid (1.3) -
Net cash generaled from operating achwties 80 83
Cash flows from investing activitles
Acquisition of subsidiary 28 {(11.4) (11 3)
Other acquisitions (0.4) (02)
Deferred consideraton of disposal of subsidiary 0.2 05
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {0 3) {0 3)
Purchase of intangible assets {4.1) {1.9)
Net cash flows used In Investing activties {18.0) {13 2)
Cash flows from financing activitles
Purchase of own shares - (0 2)
Exercise of employee share options 0.4 -
Interest paid {1.1) {04)
Repayment of obligations under finance lease (0.3) {0 2)
Divdends paid 23 (3.3} (29
Proceeds of borrowings 24 10.3 125
Finance arrangement fees paid - {0 6)
Net cash flows generated from financing actvities 6.0 82
Net (decrease)iincrease In cash and cash equivalents (2.0) 33
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July 5.3 20
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 14 3.3 53
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Company Cash Fiow Statement for the year ended 30 June 2013

2013 2012
Note £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash used in operating activies 24 {7.3) 51)
Cash flows from financing activitles
Interest patd - (04)
Exercise of employee benefit trust shares 0.4 -
Finance arrangement fees paid - {086)
Dividends paid 23 (3.3} (29)
Sale of reasuryshares - 01
Proceeds of horrowings 24 10.3 12 5
Net cash fiows generated from financing actvhes 74 a7
Net Increase In cash and cash equivatents 0.1 36
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July - (3 6)
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 14 0.1 -
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Centaur Media plc

Statement of Accounting Policles

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financlal statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated

Basls of preparation

The consolidated and Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Internationat
Financial Reporling Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union and International Financial Reperting
Interpretahions Commutlee (IFRIC) and with those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies
reporling under IFRS The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis The
consolidated financlal statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. Further detfail 1s included
within the Report of the Directors on pages 24 to 30 The functional currency of the Company 1s pounds sterling
(GBP) as that is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates. These
financial statements are presented in pounds sterling {GBP)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity wath IFRS requires the use of estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabllities at the date of the financial stalements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge of the amount, events or actions, the actual results may ultimately differ from
those estimales

The Company has taken advantage of the exermption avallable under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006
and has not prasented its own statement of comprehensive income In these financlal statements

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the group

The fallowing new standards and amendments to standards are mandatory for the first ime for the financial
year beginnung 1 July 2012,

+ JAS 1, ‘Financial statement presentation — regarding other comprehensive income’ effective for annual
periods commencing on or after 1 July 2012 (EU endorsed 5 June 2012). The amendment increases the
required level of disclosure within the statement of comprehensive income The application of the
amendment does not have any significant impact on the Group.

{b) New standards, amendmaents and Interpretations that are potentially relevant to the Group issued but not
effective for the financial year beginning 1 July 2012 (and In some cases not yet adopted by the EU) and not
early adopted

s 1AS 12, ‘Income taxes — on deferred tax’

+ IFRS 8, 'Financial instruments'.

+ [FRS 10, 'Consdlidated financial statements’

« [FRS 12, 'Disclosures of interests in other entities’

+ [FRS 13, 'Fair value measurement'.

s 1AS 27 (Revisad 2011), 'Separate financlal statements'

+ |AS 28 (revised 2011), ‘Invesimenls in associates and joint ventures’

¢« Amendments to |IAS 32, "Financial instruments: Presentation — Offselting Financial assets and financial
liabiities’

s+ Amendments to IFRS 7, 'Financial instruments Disc¢losure — Offsetting financlal assets and financial
llabilities’

¢ Annual improvements to IFRSs 2008-2011

s Transition guldance (amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12)

+ Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financiat assets (Amendments to [AS 36)
» IFRIC 21, ‘Levies'.

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of these standards and interpretations in future periods will have no
material impact on the financlal statements of the Group
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Centaur Media plc

Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)
Presentation of non-statutory measures

The Directors belleve that adjusted results and adjusted earnings per share provide additional useful informatton
on the on-going operations of the Group lo shareholders The term ‘adjusted’ is not a defined term under IFRS
and may not therefore be comparable with similarly titled profit measurements reported by other companies It
is not intended to be a substitute for, or superior to, IFRS measurements of profit,

The following chargas were presented as adjusting items

2012 2012

Notas £m £m

Exceptional costs 3 42.4 45
Amortisation of acquired intangibles g 23 08
Exceptional finance cost 4 1.3 -
46.0 53

Taxrelating to adjusting items (1.2) (0 8)
Total adjusting items 44.8 4.5

The principal adjustments are made in respect of

Exceptional costs - the Group considers items of income and expenses as exceptional items and
excludes them from the adjusted resulls where the nature of the iem, or its size, is likely to be material
s0 as to assist the user of the financial statements to better understand the results of the operations of
the Group Details of exceptional items are shown in note 3.

Amortisation of acquired intangibles — the Group amortises all intangible assets The amortisation
charge for those intangible assets recognised on the acquisition of a subsidiary are excluded from the
adjusted results of the Group so as lo assist the user of the financial statements to better understand
the results of the operations of the Group The amortisation of intangible software assels acquired other
than through the acquisition of a subsldiary is included in the adjusted results Details of amortisation of
intangibles are shaown in note 9.

Exceptional finance costs ~ the Group discounts provisions to the net present value where the effects of
such discounting are matenal The discounting on provisions relating to acquisitions Is excluded from
adjusted results of the Group so as to assist the user of the financial statements {o better understand
the results of the operations of the Group. Detalls of the exceptional finance costs are shown in note 4

The tax related to adjusting items Is the tax effect of the items above thal are allowable deductions for tax
purposes, calcufated using the standard rate of corporation tax
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Centaur Media plc

Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)
Additional presentation of non-statutory measures (continued)
Reconciliation from operating (loss)/profit to Adjusted EBITDA

Notes 2013 2012

£m £m

Operating (loss)/profit (34 9) a3
Adjusting items 447 53
Adjusted operating profit 98 86
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 10 06 07
Amorisation of software 9 23 21
Share based payments 02 03
Adjusted EBITDA 129 117

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financlal statements of Centaur Media ple and all its
subsidiaries to 30 June, adjusted where appropriate to conform with Centaur's accounting polictes

A subsidiary Is an entity controlled by the Company Contro! exists when the Company has the power, directly
or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to benefit from its activities

Where the Group has established a joint venture through an interest in a company, partnership or other entity (a
jointly controlled entity), the Group recognises iis interest in the entity using the proportionate consolidation
method, whereby the Group's share of each of the assels, llabliities, Income and expenses of the jointly
controlled entity 1s combined line by line with similar items In the Group's financfal statements

Intragroup balances and transactions and any unrealised gains or losses ansing from these transactions, are
sliminated In preparing the consalidated financial statements

Buslness Combinatlons

The acquisition of subsidianes 1s accounted for using the acquisition method The consideration for each
acquisition 1s measured at the aggregate of falr values of assels given, liabfiitles incurred or assumed, and
aquity instruments 1ssued by the Group in exchange for contral of the acquiree Acquisition costs incurred are
expensed and included in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Any deferred consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value, If the conditions
altached to the consideration indicate that the payment forms part of the acquis:tion, a provision is made for the
future liability at the acquisition date Where the deferred consideration Is contingent on the continued
employment of the vendors, such arrangements are recogrised in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income on a straight Iine basls over the Iife of the earn-out Subsequent changes to the falr
value of the contingent consideration are recognised In accordance with 1AS 39 Financlal Instruments
Recognitions and Measurement through the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income,
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Centaur Media plc

Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue Is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts
racoverable by the Group for the sales of adverlising space, subscriptions and Individual publications and
revenue from avents provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and value added tax

Sales of advertising space are recognised In the period in which publication occurs Sales of publications are
recognised In the period In which the sale 1s made Sales of online advertising are recognised in the penod in
which the advertisements are placed Revenus recelved in advance for events ts deferred and recognised in
the penod in which the event takes place

Revanue from subscriptions to publications and digital services is deferred and recognised on a stralght-line
basis over the subscription perod

Foreign currencies

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the fransaction
date Monstary assels and liabilities are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the year-end date Any gains
or losses arising on exchange are reflacted In the statement of comprehensive income

The resulis and financial position of the group entities that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated Into the presentation currency as follows

+ assets and habilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of
that balance sheet,

s income and expenses for each Income statement are lranslated at average exchange rates {unless this
average 1s not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaclion dates, in which case Income and expenses are {ransiated a! the rale on the dates of the
transactions), and

¢ all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in forelgn operations,
and of borrowings, are taken to shareholders’ equity When a foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold,
exchange differences that were recorded in equity are recognised irt the income statement as parl of the gamn or
loss on sale Goodwill and falr value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign enlily are treated as
assets and habilittes of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate

Investments

In the Company's financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for
impairment in value
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Centaur Media plc

Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)
Goodwill

Where the cost of a business acquisition exceeds the fair values alirlbutable to the separable net assels
acquired, the resulting goodwill 1s capitalised and allocated to the CGU or group of CGUs that 1s expected to
benefit from the synergies of the business combination, Goodwill has an indefinite useful life and is tested for
impairment annually or where indicators imply that the carrying value Is not recoverable

Each brand, comprising individual magazines, digital titles and events, Is deemed to be a Cash Generating Unit
(CGU) Goodwill is altributed to individual CGUs but 1s reviewed at the segment level for the purposes of the
annual impairment review as this Is the level that management monitor goodwill Any impairment Is recognised
in the statement of comprehenslive income Impairment of goodwill is not subsequently reversed

On the disposal of a cash generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill Is included in the determination of
the profit and loss on disposal

Other intanglble assets

Intangible assets acqulred separately are carried at cost less accumufated amortisation Intangthle assets
acquired as parl of business combinations are carried at fair value as at the date of acquisition less
accumulated amertisation

Computer Software

Computer software that 13 not integral to the operalion of the related hardware s carried at cost less
accumulated amartisation Costs associated with the development of identifiable and unique software products
controlled by the Group that will probably generate economic benefits In excess of costs are recognised as
intangible assaets when the criteria of IAS 38 Intangible Assets are met They are carried at cost less
accumulated amorhsation

Amortisalion is calculated lo wilte off the cost or falr value of assets on a stralght line basis over the expected
useful economiic lives to the Group over the following periods:

Computer software -3-5vyears

Brands and pubhshing rights - 20 years

Customer relationships - 10 years or the length of the contract if shorter
Woebsites and content -3-5years

Non-compete arrangsmaents - Over the lerm of the arrangement

The Group’s internally generated brands represent commerclally valuable intangibles but are not eligible for
recognition as assets under |AS 38 Intangible Assets
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Centaur Media plc

Statement of Accounting Policies {continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and Impairment losses
The historical cost of properly, plant and equipment is the purchase cost together with any incldental direct
costs of acquisition Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost, less estimaled residual value, of assets, ona
straight ine basis over the expected ussful economic lives to the Group over the following perlods:

Leasehold Improvements - 10 years or the expected length of the lease If shorter
Fixtures and fittings - 10 years
Computer equipment -3-5years

Residual values, where applicable, are reviewed annually against prevalling market rates at the balance sheet
date for equivalent aged assets and depreciation rates adjusted accordingly on a prospective basis A review of
the estimated useful economic hfe of each asset 1s carried out annually to ensure depreciation rates are
adequate

Impairmeant of non-flnanclal assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortisation are reviewed for imparment whenever events indicate
thal the carrying value may not be recoverable An impairment loss Is recognised to the extent that the carrying
value exceeds the higher of the assat's fair value less cost to sell and its value in use An assel's value inuse is
calculated by discounting an estimate of future cash flows by the Group's pre-tax weighted average cost of
capital

Taxation Including deferred tax
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

The tax currently payable Is based on the taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported
in the statement of comprehensive income because It excludes 1tems of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further includes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group and
Company's liability for current tax i1s calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax is the tax accounted for In respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and llabiliies In the financial statements, and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liabllity method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s
probable that taxable profits will be avallable against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference anses from goodwill or the initial
recognition (other than In a business combination) of other assets and habilities in a transaction that affects
neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax Is calculated at the tax rales that are expected to apply In the period when the liability 1s setlled or
the asset is realised Deferred tax is charged or credited to the statement of comprehensive income, except
when It relates to items charged or crediled directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in

equity,
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Statement of Accounting Policles (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost 1s cafculated using the first in, first out
method Work in progress comprises costs incurred relating to publications, exhibitions and conferences prior to
the publication date or the date of the event For goods for resale, cost Is the purchase price, or, in the case of
publications, the direct cost of production.

Net realisable value is based on estimated future selling price less all the further costs to completion and all
relevant marketing, sefling and distribution costs

Inventories ara reviewed regularly and full provision Is made for obsolete, slow maving or defective stock
Leases

Leases In which a significant portion of the nisks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases Payments made under operating leases (nel of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the statement of comprehenslve income on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment. Leases of propertly, plant and equipment where the
Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance lsases
are capitalised at the lease's commencement at the lower of the far value of the leased property and the
present value of the minimum lease paymenis Each lease payment is allocated between the liabilily and
finance charges so as to achleve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding The corresponding rental
obhgations, net of finance charges, are included in financlal liabliities The interest slement of the finance cost is
charged to the statement of comprehensive Income over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remalning balance of the liability for each period The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases Is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Employes benefit cost

The Group and Company contnibute to a defined contribution pension scheme for the benefit of employees The
assels of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group In an independently administered fund
Contributions to defined contribution schemes are charged to the statement of comprehensive income at the
time that the related service 1s provided The group has no further payment obligations once the contnbutions
have been paid

The expected cost of compensated holidays Is recognised at the time that the related service is provided
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Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)
Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans, under which the entity
receives services from employeas as consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Group The farr value
of the employee services received In exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense The
total amount to be expensed i1s determined by reference to the fair value of lhe optlons granted

+ including any market performance conditions,

» excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period); and

« including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the requirement for employees to save)

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options that are expected to
vest The total expense 1s recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied At the end of each reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting condiions It recognises the
impact of the revision to original estimates, If any, in the statement of comprehensive income, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares or transfers shares from treasury The
proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium when the options are exercised.

The grant by the Company of optlons over its equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in
the Group Is treated as a capital contributton The fair value of employee services recelved, measured by
reference to the grant date fair value, Is recognised over the vesting period as an increase to investment in
subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equily.

Provislons

Provisicns are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a resull of a past
event, when it 1s more likely than not thal an outflow of resources will be required to seltle the obligation and
where a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

Provislons for contingent deferred consideration are based on the Directors’ best estimate of the future llabllity.
Where the deferred consideration Is contingent on the continued empioyment of the vendors, such
arrangements are recognised In the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight line basis
over the life of the arrangement

Provisions for onerous property leases are recognised to reflect the aggregale future lease commitments, less
any contracted sub-lease income, for properlies no longer occupted and in use by the Group

Segmental reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The Board of Executive Directors has been Identified as the chief operating decision-
maker, responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments Dunng the
year the company announced a refocus of its buslness into four market-facing divisions. Marketing,
Professional, Financlal, and Consumer. The operating segments were therefore changed to refiect the way the
business Is now managed and to bstter allow the Group to focus on these customers
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Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)
Share capital and share premium

Ordinary shares are classified as equity The excess of consideration received In respect of shares issued over
the nominal value of those shares is held in the share premium account

The Company also holds a non-distributable reserve representing the fair value of share options issued

Investment In own shares

M

(i)

Employee Benefit Trust

The Group has established an employee benefit trust, which is a separately administered trust and Is
funded by loans from Group compamies The Group recognises assets and liabilltles of the trust in the
consolidated financial statements and shares held by the trust are recorded at cost as a deduction from
shareholders’ equity

Consideration received for the sale of shares held by the trust is recognised in reserves

Treasury shares

Where any Group company purchases the Company's equily share capital as treasury shares, the
constderation paid, including any direclly atlribulable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted
from equity atinbutable lo the Company's equity holders until the shares are cancelled, reissued or
disposed of Where such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received, net of any
directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related Income tax effacts, is included in equity
attributable to the Company’s equity holders.

Dividends

Dwvidends are recognised as a Hability in the perfod in which they are paid or approved by the sharsholders in
the annual general meeting.

Financlal instruments

The Group has applied IFRS 7, Financial Instruments. Disclosures, and |AS 39, Financial Instrumenis
Recognition and Measurement, as oullined below

Financial assets

The Group classifies lis financial assets in the following categories where relevant- at falr value through
profit or loss, loans and recelvables, and available-for-sale The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired Management determines the classification of its financial assets
at intial recognition.

All of the Group's financial assels have been classified as loans and recelvables, Loans and receivables
are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market They are Included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the balance
sheet date These are c¢lassifled as non-current assets. The Group's loans and recelvables comprise trade
and other recelvables and cash and cash equivalents 1n the balance sheet

Loans and recelvables are carried at amortised cost using the effeclive interest method
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Statement of Accounting Policies (continued)

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised mnitially at fair value and subsequently measured at amorhised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impawrment

A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when there s objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the recetvables.
Significant financial difficuities of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptey or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency In payments (more than 90 days overdue) are considered
indicators that the trade receivable Is Impaired The amount of the provision Is the difference belween the
assel's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounled at the original
effective interest rate The carrying amount of the asset Is reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss Is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income within net
operating expenses When a trade receivable is uncollectible, It s written off against the allowance account
for trade recelvables Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against net
operating expenses in the statement of comprehensive income

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand or maturing within
three months of the balance sheet date

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised iniially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interast method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised al fair value, net of transaction costs Incurred and carried subsequently at
amortised cost Costs of borrowings are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred
or, where appropriate, across the term of the related borrowing

Derlvative financial Instruments

Dervative financial Instruments may be used to hedge interest rate and foreign currency exposure where
these circumstances arise Discounts and premiums are charged or credited to the statement of
comprehensive Income over the Iife of the asset or liability to which they relate  Derivative financial assets
and liabilihes are stated at fair value Changes to fair value are recognised directly in equiy, to the extent
that they are effective, with the ineffective portion being recognised in the statement of comprehensive
incore n the financial period to which it relates The Group does not hold any derivative financial
instruments either for trading purposes or designated as hedges
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Key accounting assumptlons, estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial stalements under IFRS requires the use of cerlain key accounting assumptions and
requires management to exercise its judgemenl and to make estimates The areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financia! statements are as follows:

i)

i)

lil}

impalrments

In assessing whether goodwill and other intangible fixed assets are impaired, the Group uses a discounted
cash flow model which includes forecast cash flow infarmation and estimates of future growth If the resulis
of operations 1n fulure periods are lower than included in the cash flow model, impairments may be
triggered. Further detaills of the assumplions and sensitivittes in the discounted cash flow mode! are
included in note 8,

Contingent considaration

Contingent consideration related to acquisitions is dependent on the future performance of the acquired
businesses. Judgement is required in eslimating the magnitude of the contingent consideration and the
likellhood of payment Further detail related to contingent consideration i1s disclosed in notes 19 and 26

Vatfuation of Intangible assets arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries

Intangible assels arising on the acqustion of subsidianes are identified based on the Group's
understanding of the acquiree and previous experfence of similar businesses Consistent methods of
valuation for similar types of intangible asset are applied where possible and appropriate, using information
reviewad al Board level where avallable. Discount rales applied m calculating the values of intangible
assets arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries are calculated specifically for each acquisition, and
adjusted {o reflect the respective risk profile of each individual asset based on the Group's past exparlance
of similar assels
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1 SEGMENTAL REPORTING

The Operating Board of Directors has been identified as the chief operating decision-maker The Board reviews
the Group's internal monthly reporting in order to assess performance and allocate resources During the year
the Group has refocused Iis business around four market-facing segments to better focus on the customers it
sarves and the business synergies from this, Management has determined the operating segments based on
these four segments, being Marketing, Professional, Financial, and Consumer, and the comparatives have been
restated to reflect them.

The basis of measurement used for allocaling overheads Is the headcount or floor space for each division
according to the relevant cost driver.

Corporate costs are allocated lo business segments on an appropriate basls depending on the nature of the
cost Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets including goodwi,
inventories and trade receivables. Segment liabtities comprise trade payables, accruals and deferred income
Corporate assets and liabllities comprise current and deferred tax balances, cash and cash equivalents and
borrowings Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and
goodwill and Includes additions resulting from acquisitions through business combinations

All sagments derive revenues from Digital, Print and Events products

There are no major customers that provide revenue of over 10% of a reportable segment
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1 SEGMENTAL REPORTING (continued)

Marketing Professlonal Financlal Consumer Group
£m Em £m £m £m

Year ended 30 June 2013
Revanus 238 241 13.3 10.8 72,0
Adjusted EBITDA 36 54 22 17 129
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (0 3) o1 {0 1) {0 1) {(06)
Amortisation of software on (1 4) 1) {0 1) (2 3)
Amortsation of acquired intangibles 17 (0 3) {0 2) {0.1) (2 3)
Impaicment of goodwill (20 8) (42) (14 2) - (39 2)
Exceplional cosls 39 (60) (06) (0 5) (32)
Segment result (16.0) (6.6} (13.0) 09 (34.7)
Share based paymeonts {0 2)
Operating loss {(34.9)
Finance costs {2 5)
Loss before tax (37 4)
Taxation {10}
Loss for the year (38 4)
Segment assets 507 600 189 132 142 8
Corporate assets 48
Consolidated total assets 147.6
Segmant habilittes (17 3) (14 7} (3 5) :=7) {39 2)
Corporata liabilitles {26 B)
Consolidated total liabillties (66.0)
Other ltems
Capital expenditure 106 21 06 02 135
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1 SEGMENTAL REPORTING (continued)

Marketing Professional Financlal Consumer Group
{restated) {restated) (restated) (restated)
£m £m £m £m £m

Year ended 30 June 2012
Revenus 15.0 24.7 16,6 10.3 66.6
Adjusted EBITDA 29 43 30 15 117
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (0 1) {0 3) (0.2) (0.1) 07
Amortisation of software (0 3) {13) (0 2) (0 3) (2 1)
Amortisation of acquired intangibles (0 2) {03 (0 2) (0.1) (0 8)
Exceptional costs (14) {2 5) (0 4) {0 2) (4 5)
Segment result 0.9 {0.1) 2.0 0.8 3.6
Share based payments (0.3}
Operating profit 3.3
_Finance costs {0.6)
Profit before tax 27
Taxation (1 4)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 13
Segment assets 456 626 330 124 153 6
Corporate assels 61
Consolidated tofal assets 169.7
Segment habilties (5.1) (10.6) (3 8) (39 (23 4)
Corporate liabilities (137)
Consolldated total llabllitles (37 1)
Other itams
Capltal expenditure 53 20 13 05 91
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1 SEGMENTAL REPORTING (continued)

Revenue by Geographlical Location

The Group's revenues from external customers by geographical location are detalled below

2013 2012

£m £m

United Kingdom 64 3 60.4
Europe (excl UK) 32 26
North America 28 13
Rest of World 17 13
720 6856

Substantially all of the Group's net assets are located in the United Kingdom The Directors therefore consider

that the Group currently operates in a single geographical segment, being the Unitad Kingdom

An analysls of the Group's revenue by type is as followings

2013 2012
£m £m

Sale of goods
Digital 249 195
Print 204 251
Events 262 205
Other 05 05
720 656
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2 NET OPERATING EXPENSES

Operating profitls stated after charging/{crediting)

Adjusted Adjusting Statutory Adjusted Adjustng Statutory
Results items Results Results tems Resulis
2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
Employee benefit expense 5 264 - 26 4 252 - 252
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 10 06 - 06 67 - 07
Amorlisation of intangibles 9 23 23 48 21 08 29
Impairment of goodwill 8 - 392 392
Exceptional costs 3 - 32 32 - 45 45
Operating lease rentals
Minimum lease payments 27 - 27 24 - 24
Repairs and maintenance expenditure on
property, plant and equipment 01 - o1 - - -
Trade receivables impairment - - - 01 - 01
Other operating expenses 301 - 301 27.0 - 27.0
622 447 106 9 570 53 62 3
Costof Sales 367 - 367 350 - 350
Distribution costs 20 - 20 25 - 25
Adminstrative expenses 235 447 682 1956 53 248
622 447 106 ¢ 570 53 623
Services provided by the Company's auditors
2013 2012
£'000 £'000
Auditfees
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of parent company
and consolidated financlal statements 30 30
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and Its associates for other services
The audit of the Company's subsidianes pursuant to legislaton 119 117
Total audit foes 149 147
Audit related assurance serices 26 25
Taxahon comphance serces 43 -
Other taxatron advwisory semices 15 -
Other assurance services 47 47
Corporate finance servuces - 201
Cther services - 18
Total non-audit fees 131 291
280 438
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3 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

2013 2012
£m £m
Rastruclunng costs

Redundancies 28 18
Accelerated amortisation of soflware 02 01
Accslerated share based paymentcharge a1 -
Postclosure costs - 03

31 23

Acquisition related costs 07 1.1
Deferred contingent consideration 43 11
Deferred contingent considerabon adjustment (54) -
Onerous lease provision 08 03
Profiton disposal - {0 3)
Other o1) -
Exceptional casls (before goodwill impalrmeant) 32 45
Goodwill impairment 392 -
Total 42.4 4.6

Restructuring costs in 2013 comprise redundancy costs of £2.8m and associated costs as a result of on-going
restructuning actlvities as well as accelerated amortisation of software of £0 2m and an accelerated share based
payments charge on resignation of a director and an Operating Board member during the year Costs in 2012
comprised redundancy costs, accelerated amortisation of software and product closure costs on discontinued

products

Acgquisition related costs in 2013 comprise the legal and professional fees assoclated with the acquisition of E-
consultancy com Limited ("Econsultancy") Acguisition related costs in 2012 comprise the legal and professional
fees associated with the acquisibon of Investment Plalforms Limited (“IPL") In August 2011 {£0 1m), Venture
Business Research Limited ("VB Research”) in December 2011 (£0 2m) and The Profile Group {"Proflle”) In
February 2012 (£0 2m}, plus non-contingent legal and professional fees incurred associated with the acquisition
of Econsultancy (£0 5m) and legal and professional fees associated with the refinancing of the Group's banking

facilities In February 2012 (£0 1m)

The deferred contingent consideration charged In the year relates to contingent consideration assoclated with
the acquisition of The Forum for Expalriate Managsment Limited ("FEM") (£3 Om} and of IPL {(£0 8m) and VB
Research (£0 5m). As lhese payments are contingent on continued smployment, IFRS 3(R) requires that they
be recorded through the perlod from the date of acquisition to the end of the performance perlod on which the
consideratton is measured The amounts charged in 2013 represent the current year portion of the expected
total payment, plus an adjustment fo earlter periods where the latest information available indicates that the
consideration ulimately payable will differ from that which was initially expected

The deferred contingent consideration adjustment relates to reassessment of the consideration payable for
Econsultancy as a result of a downgrade in expected earnings (note 19)

During 2013 Perfect Information relocated to Centaur's offices, resulting in an onerous lease provision of £0 6m
belng made for the remaining cost of their existing lease (note 19). Costs in 2012 related to the vacation of the

Taxbriefs premises

Impairment of goodwill relates to the write down during the year of goodwill In the Marketing, Professional and
Financial segments (note 8)
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3 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS (continued)

Other axceptional cosls (£0 1m) relate to the unwinding of the discount of the deferred consideration receivable

on disposed trading assets

The profit on disposal duning 2012 relates to the disposal of certan Logistics, Supply Chain and Corporate
Services products The gain of £0 3m recognised in relation to these disposals represents the net present value
of the consideration receivable from the sales (£1.1m), less the net book value of intangible assels disposed
(£0 6m - disclosed as held for sale In 2011) and legal, professional and other costs of disposal (£0.2m)

4 FINANCE COSTS

2013 2012
£m £m
Interest payable on revolvng credit facllity 08 0.3
Commitment fess and amortisation of arangement fee
in respect of revolving credit facility 03 0.2
Finance lease interest 01 01
Total interest expense 12 06
Unwinding of discount on prowsions (included in adjusting items) 13 -
25 08
5 DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES
2013 2012 2013 2012
Group Group  Company Company
£m £m £m £m
Wages and salanes 228 21.7 0.8 08
Soclal security costs 29 27 01 01
Other pension costs {note 28) 06 05 01 01
Equity settled share-based payments {note 22) 03 03 - 01
264 252 10 11
Exceptional redundancy costs (note 3} 28 189 -
292 27 1 10 1.1
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5 DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES (continued)

The average monthly number of employees employed dunng the year, including Directors, was

2013 2012
Group Group
Number Number

{as restated)*

Marketing 165 84
Professional 135 131
Fmancial 67 92
Consumer 58 48
Central 168 181

593 536
*seo note 1

Key management compensation

2013 2012

£m £m

Salanes and shorl term employment benefits 12 1.2
Termination benefits 07 -
Post employment benefits 01 01
Share based paymeants 0.2 02
22 18

Detalls of Directors' remuneration are included in the Directors' Report on Remuneration on page 48
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6 TAXATION
2013 2012
£m £m
Analysis of charge In year
Currant tax
Current year 13 13
Adjustment in respect of pnor year 04 D4
17 17
Deforred tax (note 20)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences {0 5) 01
Adjustment in respect of prior year {0 2) (0 4)
{07 (0 3)
Taxatlon 10 14

The tax charge for the year can be reconcled to the (loss)/profitin the statement of comprehensive income as
follows

2013 2012
£m £m
(Loss)/profit before tax (37 4) 27
Taxat the UK rate of corporation taxof 23 75% (2012. 26 §%) (89) 07
Effects of.
Expenses not deducible for tax purposes 04 10
Goodwill Impalrment not deductible g3 -
Effects of changes in taxrate on deferred tax balances - {03)
Utilisation of taxlosses brought forward - o1
Adjustments In respect of prior year 02 -
Daferred tax charge on share based payments taken to the statement of
comprehensive income - 01
10 14

The Finance Act 2012 included legislation to reduce the malin rate of corporation tax from 24% to 23% from 1
April 2013 Accordingly the company’s profits for this accounting period are taxed at a rate of 23 75%

In addition, legislation to reduce the main rate of corporation tax from 23% to 21% from 1 Apnl 2014 and from
21% to 20% from 1 April 2015 was included in the Finance Act 2013 These further changes had not been
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and, therefore, are not included in these financial statements

There will be no material effect on the deferred tax liability or the tax charge resulting from the changes to be
enacted In the Finance Act 2013
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7 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic (loss)earnings per share (LPS/EPS) 1s calculated by dividing the (loss)/earnings atiributable to ordinary
shareholders by the weighted average number of shares in issue durlng the year 1,693,673 (2012 1,813,762)
shares held in the employee benefit trust and 7,318,291 {2012 8,964,507) shares held in treasury have been
excluded in arrving at the weighted average number of shares

For diluted {loss)/earnings per share the welghted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares This comprises share options (including those
granted under the Sharesave plan) granted to Directors and employees where the exercise price 1s less than
the average market price of the Company's ordinary shares during the year

An alternative measure of adusted earnings per share has been provided as the Directors believe that this
measure is more reflective of the on-going trading of the Group

2013 2013 2013 2012 2012 2012
{Loas)/earnings Welghted (Loss)earnings Weighted
attributable average attnbutable average
to cwners number Earnings to owners number Earnings
of the parent of sharas per share of the parent of shares per share
£m millions Pance £m miliions Pence
Baslc {38.4) 140.9 {27.3) 13 1393 o®
Effact of dilutive securities
Optlons - 23 - - 22 -
Diluted {38 4} 1432 (26 8) 13 1415 09
Adjusted
Basi
asie (38 4) 1409 273 13 1393 09
Amortisation of acquired
intangibles (excluding software)
(note 8) 23 - 16 08 - 08
Excephonal finance costs (note 4) 13 - 09 - - -
Excephonal costs (note 3) 42 4 - 302 45 - 32
Tax effact of above adjustments
) (1 2) - (0 9) {0 8) - (0 5)
Adjusted 64 1409 45 58 1393 42
Effect of dilutiva securities
Ophons - 23 - - 22 -
Diluted adjusted 64 1432 45 58 1415 41
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8 GOODWILL

Note £m
Cost
At 1 July 2011 142 0
Additions - acquisition of subsidiaries 58
Additions - other acquisitions 02
FEM adjustment (0 8)
At 1 July 2012 147 2
Additions - acquisition of subsidlaries 25 16 7
Additions - other 01
At 30 June 2013 164 0
Accumulated impalrment
At 1 July 2011 and 2012 259
Charge for the year 392
At 30 June 2013 65 1
Net book amount
At 30 June 2013 98.9
At 30 June 2012 124.3
At 1 July 2011 116 1

Addltions to goodwill arose on the acquisition of Econsultancy in July 2012 (Note 25) Additions from other
acquisilions in 2013 arose from the purchase of an additional 0 71% of the share capital of Perfect Information

for £0 1m in November 2012

Additions in 2012 arose from the acquisiions made during the ysar (Note 25) Other acquisitions related to the
purchase of 0.71% of additional share capital in Perfect Information The FEM adjustment related to an
adjustmeant to acquisition accounting on the 2011 acquisition to recognise the deferred consideration as post

acquisition remuneration consistent with IFRS 3 {R)

Page 82




Centaur Media plc

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
8 GOODWILL (continued)

Goodwlill by segment

Each brand, comprising individual magazines, digital titles and events, 1s deemed to be a Cash Generaling Unit
(CGU), being the lowest leve! for which cash flows are separately identifiable Goodwill is attributed to individual
CGUs hut is reviewed at the segment lavel for the purposes of the annual impairment review as this Is the level
that management monitor goodwiil The majority of the Group's goodwill arose on the acquisition of the Centaur
Communications Group in 2004

Goodwill I1s allocated to segments as follows:

Marketing Professional Financlal Consumer Total

Em £m £m Em £m

At 30 June 2013 36.7 424 12.3 75 98.9
AL 30 June 2012 {as restated)” 409 46 5 26 4 75 1213

*see note 1

Impairment testing of goodwlll and acquired Intangible assets

During the year goodwill was tested for Impairment in accordance with 1AS 36 [n assessing whelher a write-
down of goodwill and acquired intangible assels Is required, the carrying value of the segment Is compared with
iIts recoverable amount Recoverable amount is measured based on value-in-use.

The Group estimates the value-In-use of its CGUs using a discounted cash flow mode!, which adjusts the cash
flows for risks associated with the assets and discounts these using a pre-tax rate of 12 6% (2012, 11.9%) The
discount rate used Is consistent with the Group's welghted average cost of capital and is used across all
segments

The key assumptions used In calculaling value-in-use are revenue growth, margin, adjusted EBITDA, discount
rate and the terminal growth rate. The Group has used formally approved forecasis for the first three years of
the value-in-use calculation, and applied a terminal growth rate of 2.25% (2012 2.25%) This timescale and the
terminal growth rate are both considered appropriate given the cyclical nature of the Group's revenues

The assumptions used in the calculations of value-in-use for each segment have been derived based on a
combination of past experience, current orders and opporluniies and management’s expectations of future
growth rates in the industry

At 30 June 2013, before impairment lesting, goodwill of £57 5m, £46.6m and £26 4m was allocated to the
Marketing, Professional and Financial segments respectively These segmenls have been affected during the
year by the weakness in print adverlising sales and also the reduction in expectations for overseas operations
and as a result the Group has revised its cash flow forecasis for these groups of CGUs The Marksting,
Professional and Financial segments have therefore been reduced to ther respeclive recoverable amount
through recognition of an impalrment loss against goodwill of £20.8m, £4.2m and £14 im respectively

For the remaining segment, Consumer, the value-in-use calculations comfortably exceed the carrying values in
the sensiivity scenarios

Following the impairments recorded, a 0.5% increase in WACC would result in further Impairment of £1 9m,
£06m, and £2 5m In Markeling, Professional and Financial respectively. No imparrment would oceur in
Consumer A 5% decrease n the EBITDA assumplion used in the model in years 1-5 would resuit in further
impairment of £2 2m, £0.9m and £2.9m across Marketing, Professional and Financial respectively No
fmpairment would og¢eur in Consumer
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9 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Brands and
Computer publishing Customer Websltes Non-compete
software rights relationships and content arrangements Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Cost
Al 1 July 2011 130 99 42 04 05 280
Additions - business combinations - 10 44 11 - 656
Additions - separately acquired 17 01 - - - 18
Additions - Internally generated 03 - - - - 03
Disposals {0 2) (54) {2 6) - - (8 2)
At 30 June 2012 148 586 60 15 05 284
Additions - business combinations 03 - 56 32 - 91
Additions - separately acquired 35 - - - - 35
Additons - internally generated 06 - - - 06
At 30 June 2013 19.2 5.6 11.6 47 0.5 416
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 July 2011 81 60 32 04 05 182
Amorlisation charge for the year 21 02 056 01 - 29
Accelerated amoritsation (nots 3) 01 - - - - 01
Disposals {0 2) (54) (2 8) - - (8 2)
At 30 June 2012 101 08 11 08§ 05 130
Accelerated amorisation {note 3) 02 - - - - 02
Amortisation charge for the year 23 03 12 08 - 46
At 30 June 2013 12.6 1.1 23 13 0.5 17.8
Net Book value at 30 June 2013 6.6 4.6 93 34 - 238
Net Book value at 30 Juna 2012 47 48 49 10 - 154
Net book value at 1 July 2011 49 39 10 - - 98

Computer software capitalised in 2013 and 2012 principally relates to the development of software used In

websites and digital products, and also to the development of new products in various segments

The additions to cusiomer relationships and websites and content in 2013 relate to the acquisilion of

Econsultancy (see note 25)

The Company has no intangible assets (2012. £nil).
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Leaseheld Fixtures Computer
Improvements and fittings equipment Total
£m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 July 2011 35 ao 18 a3
Additions 0 01 02 04
Additons - business combinations - - 01 01
At 30 June 2012 36 31 21 88
Addihons - o1 02 03
Dispaosals - (01) {0 5} (0 6}
At 30 June 2013 36 31 1.8 8.8
Accumulated depreclation
A1 July 2011 24 19 15 58
Depraclation charge for the year 03 03 01 07
At 30 June 2012 27 22 16 65
Depreciation charge for the year 02 02 02 06
Elminated on disposal - o1 (0 5) (08)
At 30 June 2013 29 23 1.3 6.6
Nat Book value at 30 June 2013 0.7 0.8 0.5 20
Net Book value at 30 June 2012 09 09 05 23
Net Book value at 1 July 2011 11 11 03 25

Included in fixtures and fittings are assets purchased under finance leases with a cost of £0 8m (2012 £0 8m),
accumulated depreclation of £0 4m (2012: £0.3m) and net book value of £0 4m {2012, £0.5m)

The Company has no property, plant and equipment (2012 £nll)
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11 INVESTMENTS

£m
Cost
At 1 July 2011, 2012 and 30 June 2013 146 2
Accumutated impairment
At 1 July 2012 and 2013 -
Charge for the year 122
122
Net book value at 30 June 2013 134 0
Net book value at 30 June 2011 and 2012 146 2

The following table shows the principal trading subsidiary undertakings of the Company as at 30 June 2013
A full of Iist of subsidiary undertakings will be provided with the Company's next Annual retum as at 30

October 2013 which will be available at Companies House

Proportlon

of ordinary

shares

held and

Name voting
%

Centaur Communications Limited ! 100 00
Centaur Consumer Exhibitions Limited 100 00
Chiron Communications Limited 100 00
Ascent Publishing Limited 100 0C
Perfect Information Limited 98 11
Pro-Talk Limited 100.00
Taxbriefs Holdings Limited 100.00
Taxbriefs Limited 100 00
The Forum for Expatriate Management Limited 100 00
The Forum for Expatrate Management Inc 100 00
Inestment Platforms Limited 100 00
Venture Business Research Limited 100 00
The Profile Group (UK) Limited 100 00
E-consultancy com Limited 100 00

! Directly owned by Centaur Media plc

Principal activities

Holding company and

agency sendces
Exhibitions

Digital and print publishing
Digital and print publishing
Financial nformation

semces
Digital publishing
Holding company

Digital and print publishing
Ewents and information
Ewnts and information
Research data and analysis
Research data and analysis

Digital information

Digital Information, training

and events

Country of
incorporation

United Kingdom

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United States

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of all entities controlled by the

Company at 30 June each year

The proportion held by the Group of the share capital of Perfect Information increased In FY13 from 97 40% to

98 11% following the purchase of an adddional 0 V1% from a minonty shareholder (nole 8)

The non-controliing interest has not been racognised by the Group in relation to Perfect Information as the
minarity share of the company's net assels as at 30 June 2013 was not malerial for disclosure in these financial

statements.
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12 INVENTORIES

2013 2012
Group Group
£m £m
Work in progress 20 11
The company had no inventory at 30 June 2013 (2012 £nil)
13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2013 2012 2013 2012
Group Group Company Company
£m £m £m £m
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade receivables 112 95 - -
Less provsion for impairment of receivables (02) {0 2) - -
Trade receivables - nat 110 83 - -
Receivables from subsidiaries - - 92 28
Other receivables 17 14 03 03
Prepaymenls and accrued income 34 28 - -
16 1 1356 95 31
The ageing of trade receivables at 30 June, according to therr otiginal due date, is detailed below
2013 2013 2012 2012
Gross Provision Gross Provslion
£m £m £m £m
Relating to future revenues 23 - 26 -
Current 72 - 41 .
31-80 days 07 - 16 -
61-90 days 06 - 06 -
Over 90 days 05 {0 2) 06 (02)
11.2 (02) 95 (02)

The amount relating to future revenues forms part of deferred income in note 17
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movement in the prowision for impairment of recervables is detailed below,

2013 2012
Group Group

Em £m

Balance at start of year 02 04
Utllised 02) (03)
Additional provision charged to the statement of comprehensive income 02 01
02 02

The Group's policy requires customers to pay In accordance with agreed payment terms, which are generally 30
days from lhe date of invoice or, in the case of event-related revenue, 30 days before the event. All credit and
recovery risk assocrated with trade receivables has beaen provided for in the balance shest The Group's poltcy
for recognising an impalrment loss is glven in the statement of accounting policies Impairment losses are taken
through administrative expenses in the Statement of comprehensive income.

The directors consider the carrying value of trade and other receivables approximates to thelr fair value

14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank and in hand

2013
Group
£m

33

2012
Group
£m

53

2013
Company
£m

01

2012

Company

£m
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16 BORROWINGS

2013 2012 2013 2012
Group Group Company Company
£m £m £m Em
Current liabilitles
Finance lease payables 02 02 - -
Arrangement fee in respect of revolving credit facility (0 2) {0 2) (0 2) {02)
- - (02} {02)
Non-current llabilities
Finance lease payables 01 03 - -
Arrangement fae in respect of revolving credit facility (02) (03) (02) Q3
Rewlvng credit facilty 228 126 2238 125
227 125 226 122
Further details about the Group's borrowings are prouded in nole 26
Finance lease payables
Lease payables are secured as the rights to the leased assets revert lo the lessor in the event of default
2013 2012
Em £m
Gross finance lease liabiiities - minimum lease payments
No [ater than 1 year 02 03
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 ysars 01 03
03 06
Future finance charges on finance leases - (01)
Present value of finance lease liabilites 03 05
The present value of finance lease llabilities 1s as follows
2013 2012
£m £m
No later than 1 year 02 02
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 01 03
Prasent value of finance leasa liabilibes 03 05

The finance lease relates to office equipment purchased in 2010
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16 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2013 2012 2013 2012
Group Group Company Company
£m £m £m £m
Trade payables 22 11 - -
Payables to subsidianes - - 04 03
Social secunty and other taxes 29 28 01 01
Other payables 08 01 - -
Accruals 57 60 03 01
118 100 08 05 |

Pavables to subsidiarias are unsecured, have no fixed date of repayment and bear interest at an annual rate of
211% (2012 2 11%). |

The directors censider that the carrying amount of the trade payables approxmates to their fair value |

17 DEFERRED INCOME

2013 2012

Group Group

£m £m

Deferrad income 14 3 113
18 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES

2013 2012

Group Group

£m £m

Corporation tax 14 08
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19 PROVISIONS
Deferred Onerous
consideration lease Total
£m £m £m
At 1 July2012 12 03 16
Utiised during the year {02) (0 8) {0 8)
Charged to statement of comprehensive Income dunng the year 43 06 49
Released dunng the year {54) {¢1) {5 5)
Unwinding of discount 13 - 13
Ariging on acquisltions {nole 25) 116 - 116
At 30 June 2013 128 02 130
Current 30 0.1 31
Non-current 98 01 9.9
Total 128 02 130

Deferred Consideration
Deferred constderation relates to amounts payable for the acquisitions of FEM, IPL, VBR and Econsultancy

The amount of deferred contingent consideration payable with respect lo the acquisitron of FEM was based on
the profits generated by FEM in FY13 (the performance period) £02m (2012 £nll) was advanced during the
year, The balance Is payable dunng FY14 The amount of deferred contingent consideration payable with
respect to the acquisition of IPL Is dependent on the profits generated by IPL in FY14 (the performance perlod),
subject to a maximum earn out payment of £4 2m The amount of deferred contingent consideration payable
with respect to the acquisition of VBR i1s dependent on the profits generated by VBR In FY15 (the performance
period), subject to a maximum earn out payment of £5 Om  In all cases, the amount provided Is dependent on
continued employment of the former owners of the business and Is treated as post-acquisition remuneration
accruing over the period post-acquisition to the end of the performance perlod All amounts represent the
Directors' best estimate of the amount to be paid at the balance sheet date

Amounts arlsing on acquisition relate to deferred consideration payable with respect to the acquisition of
Econsuitancy. The amount payable is dependent on the profits generated by Econsultancy in the 12 months
ended 31 December 2015 (the performanca period), subject to a maximum of £38 Om The forecast amount has
been discounted to its present value Durning the vear the directors best estimate of the deferred consideration
payable was revised downwards and the excess provision of £5 4m released to the slatement of comprehensive
Income

Onerous Lease

The onerous lease provision relates to premises that are no longer occupied following the transfer of staff to
existing group premuses The leases are due to expire during the years ended 2014 and 2016
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20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
The movement on the defarred income tax account is shown below
Accelerated Other
capltal temporary Tax
allowances differences losses Total
£m Em Em Em
Net asset/{iabiity) at 1 July 2011 05 (10) - {0 5)
Recognised in the statement of comprehensive incom¢ - - 03 03
Net asset/(liability) at 1 July 2012 0.5 (10 0.3 {02)
Acquisifion of subsidiary (nole 26} - 20 - (2 0)
Recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 05 - 02 07
Net asset/(liabllity) at 30 June 2013 10 (3.0) 05 {(15)

Deferrad taxassets and habilities are only offset where there is a legally enforceable nght of offset and there 1s an

intention to settla the balances net

2013 2012

Group Group

Em £m

Defarred taxasset 15 08
Deferrad taxhabiities (3 0) (10)
Total (1 5) 02)

At the balance sheet dale, the Group has unused tax losses of £1 6m (2012' £1 6m) available for offset against
future profits Deferred tax assets have been recogrised i respect of all such tax losses and other temporary
differences giving nise to deferred tax assets where It Is considered probable based on future budgets that there
will be future taxable profits against which these assets will be recovered.
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21 SHARE CAPITAL

2013 2012
Group and Group and
company company
£m £m
Authorlsed
200,000,000 {2012° 200,000,000) ordinary shares of 10p sach 200 200
Issued and fully pald
At 30 June 2013.150,207,960 (30 June 2012: 150,207,960) 15 Q 150

Potential Issue of ordinary shares

Certaln senior execullves hold options to subscribe for shares in the Company at prices ranging from
41 67p to 100.00p under the Share Opticn plan and the Rollover plan Mo oplions were exercised under
these plans during 2013 or 212, The majarily of the 2004 options were cancelled during 2011 and
Retention plan options were issued - refer to note 22 for more details

A Sharesave plan was launched during 2008 and options have been granted under this plan in
subsequent financlal years as detalled in note 22

A Senior Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan (SELTIP) was launched In 2010 and restricted shares have
been awarded under this plan in 2013 and 2012 as detaled in note 22

The number of shares subject to oplions, the periods in which they were granted and the periods in which

they may be exercised are given below.

Exerclse
Price
Year of grant Plan Pence
30 June 2004 Roliover oplions 417
30 June 2004 Rollover oplions 579

30 June 2004 Share Option plan 1
30 June 2008 Sharesave plan

30 June 2009 Share Option plan

30 June 2002 Sharesave plan

30 June 2008 Sharesave plan

30 June 2010 Sharesave plan

30 June 2010 Sharesave plan

30 June 2012 SELTIP

30 June 2013 SELTIP

000
647
518
209
209
412
412

Exarcise perlod

10 March 2005 to 8 March 2014

10 March 2006 to 9 March 2014

10 March 2005 to 9 March 2014

1 June 2013 to 1 December 2013

29 September 2012 to 29 October 2018

1 July2012 to 1 January2013

1 July2014 to 1 January 2015

1July2013 to 1 January2014

1 July 2015 to 1 January 2016

16 September 2014 to 15 September 2021
16 September 2014 to 15 September 2021

2013 2012
Number of Number of
potential  potental
lssues of 1ssues of
shares shares

- 172,777

- 26,743
587,333 805,010
29,678 34,708

- 2,290,000

- 1,383,147
584,051 997,938
83,618 138,189
18,008 33,933
526,484 711,621
585,826 -

2,395,088 6,594,068

The Retention plan as referred to in note 22 will not result in the fssue of any ordinary shares as this plan is not
approved by shareholders. The awards will be settled from the shares held in the employee benefit trust
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The Group operates a number of share based payment schemes

Rollover plan

Centaur Med:a plc Executive Directors and certain senior employees elected to rollover exisling (“old”) Centaur
Communications Limited share options into new “rallover” share aptions in Centaur Media plc The options were
exchanged for options each at various exercise prices In Centaur Media plc Rollover option holders have been
entitied to exerclse the former Centaur Communtications Limited options from 10 March 2005 and are excluded
from any performance conditions,

Share Option Plan
The Share Option Plan is made up of two parts. Part | is approved by the Inland Revenue under legislation
which encourages employees to own shares In the Group in a tax efficient manner Part Ii of the plan has nol
been approved by the Inland Revenuse,
The Committes had previously granted share options in 2004 under the Share option plan lo members of senior
management The Board's objective in granting options was to increase shareholder value through growth in
earnings. All these optlons can now be exercised as the corporate performance targets relaling to them have
been met Detalls of these targets were set out in the 2008 Report
In Oclober 2008 share options were granted to certaln Directors and key members of management The oplions
granted were exercisable upon the achievement of certain adjusted EPS targets in respect of the financial year
ending 30 June 2012 and could not be re-tested. These EPS targets were

»  8.7p - 10% vesting
8 9p - 20% vesting
9 2p - 30% vesting
9 4p - 60% vesting
9 7p - 75% vesting
10 Op - 100% vesting

.- & & & @

Thess targets were nol met so the share options granted in October 2008 did not vest.

There Is a imit on the grant of options under the Share Opticn Schemes Oplions may not be granted if the
numbers of ordinary shares over which they are granted (together with any ordinary shares which are subject to
options granted pursuant to the Rollover Plan) exceed 5 per cent of the ordinary shares in issue mmediately
prior to the date of grant of the options

Retentlion Plan

As part of a review of all employee equity incentives, on 15 September 2010 the Remuneration Committee and
Board of Directors adopted the rules of the "The Centaur Media plc 2010 Retention Plan” (the "Plan”) The main
Impact of the adoption of the Plan was the cancellation, with the agreement of option holders, of outstanding
vested share options granted on 9 March 2004 and 29 September 2004 under the Centaur Media plc Share
Option Plan and therr replacement with a lower number of forfeitable nil-priced options ("Retention Awards”),
granted on the basis of 1 Retention forfeitable nil-cost option for every 3 exisling vested options surrendered
The Retention Awards will vest 50% on the second anniversary of the date of grant and the balance on the third
anniversary There are no performance conditions other than continuing employment

On 30 December 2011, a further 170,000 il cost options were granted under the Retentlon Plan fo Mark
Kerswell, a Directors of Centaur Media plc  The awards vested 50% on 30 June 2013 and 50% on 30 June
2014 The participant first became eligible to parficipate in the arrangement on his permanent appointment as
Group Finance Director on 11 October 2011. The arrangement was eslablished specifically to faclitate the
recruttment of Mark Kerswell as a result of the resignation and ill health of Mike Lally There are no
performance conditions other than continuing employment

The Retention Plan has not been approved by shareholders Awards will be satisfied using shares held in the
Employee Benefit Trust
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22 SHARE BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Senlor Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan ("SELTIP*)

The Centaur Media Plc 2010 Senior Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan (the "SELTIP") was introduced during
2011 The plan is described on page 49 within the Direclors' Report on Remuneration

Awards of bonus units were made in 2011, 2012 and 2013 as summarised in the following table:

Numbsr of
Financial year Threshold PBTA Profit growth SELTIP Total bonus Bonus pool shares awarded
profit achieved contnbution poof allocated* in total™
2011 £4 Om £6 bm £2.5m 20% £04m £04m 711,621
2012 £6 5m £8 Om £15m 30% £C4m £03m 788,896
2013 £8 Om £8 8m £0 8m 30% £01m £01m aus

*The Remuneration Commitlee did not allocate the enfire bonus pool in 2012 or 2013

** Awards are only made lo paricipants with continuing employment

*** The 2013 awards will be converted {o restricted shares on 12 September 2013 based on the share price af the close of
business on 11 September 2013

Share Incentlva Plan

The Share Incenlive Plan is open to all employees who have been employed by the Group for more than 12
months Employees may invest up to £1,500 per annum (or 10% of their salary if less) in shares in the Company
which are held in trust and can be withdrawn with tax paid at any time, or tax-free after five years The company
matches the contribution with a ratio of 1 share for every 2 purchased Other than continuing employment,
there are no ather performance conditions attached to the plan

The Executive Directors are eliglble to participate in the Share Incentive Plan, as are all employees of the
Group. The Share Incentive Plan Is an HMRC approved plan

ShareSave Plan

The Group has a ShareSave Plan (the 'SAYE Scheme') The SAYE Scheme is an HMRC approved all-
employee plan and is open to all employaes who have been employed by the Group for more than 12 months
Employsas may Invest up to £3,000 per annum for a period of elther 3 or 5 years, after which they may exercise
SAYE optlons within 6 months of lhe anniversary date of the cantract commencement date Options were
granted in 2008, 2009 and 2010 Other than continuing employment, there are no other performance conditions
attached to the plan

The Executive Directors are eligible to participate in the ShareSave Plan, as are all employess of the Group
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At 30 June 2013, the following options were outstanding over the shares of Centaur Medta pic in the above
plans (excluding the ShareSawe Plan).

2013 2012

Contractual Contractual

Exercise price remalning life remalning life

Plan Pence Number years Number years
Rollover plan 41 67 - 07 172,777 17
Rollover plan 57 87 - 07 28,743 17
Share option plan 100 G0 587,333 07 805,010 17
Share option plan 5175 - 53 2,280,000 63
Retention plan - 281,565 10 398,321 20
Retention plan - 170,000 15 170,000 25
SELTIP 2011 - 526,484 82 711,621 92
SELTIP 2012 586,826 82 - -
2,151,208 48 4,674 472 51

The movements in the year for the abowe plans over the shares of Centaur Media pic can be analysed as
follows

2013 2012
Weighted average Woelghted average
exerclse price exercise price
Number Pence Number Pence
Qutstanding at 1 July 4,574,472 45 42 5015929 86 81
Exercised during the year (86,7565) - (189,738) -
Granted dunng the ysar 788,696 - 1,101,471 -
Cancelled in the year - - (219,850) -
Forfeited during the year {3,125,205) {47 68) {1,133,340) (52 82)
Qutstanding at 30 June 2,151,208 27 30 4,674,472 4542
Exercisable at 30 June 587,333 100 00 1,004,530 88 85

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise was 44 1p (2012 39 6p)

ShareSave Plan
The following ShareSawe Plan awards were outstanding at 30 June 2013

2013 2012

Contractual Contractual

remaining life remalning life

Plan Number years Number years
2008 & year plan 29678 042 34,708 142
2009 3 year plan - - 1,383,147 051
2008 5 year plan 564,051 151 997,938 251
2010 3 year plan 83,618 051 138,189 151
2010 & year plan 18,068 2 50 33,833 350
695,445 168 2,587 915 166

Page 926




Centaur Media plc

Notes to the financlal statements {(continued)

22 SHARE BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

The movements In the year for the Sharesave plan over the shares of Centaur Media plc can be analysed as
follows:

2013 2013 2012 2012

Welghted average Weighted average

exercise price exercise pnce

Number Pence Nurmber Penca

Culstanding at 1 July 2,687,915 2286 3,346,202 2317
Exarcised during the year (1,646,216) (21 06) {331,124) (20 82)
Forfeited during the year (246,254) (26 67) {427,163) (26 82)
Outstanding at 30 June 695,445 2576 2,587,915 22 86

Exercisable at 30 June - - - -

The weighted average share pnce at the date of exercise was 36 5p (2012 36 &p)

Estimated
fair value Share Expected Risk free
atgrant price at Exercise Expected dividend Interest
Date of Valuation date grant date price volatility growth rate
Plan grant model used Pence Pence Pence % % %
Share option plan 9 3 04 Stochastic 24 50 10000 10000 22 1% 150% 4860%
Share option plan 29 9 04 Stochaslic 2140 B8 50 88 50 22 1% 170% 4 80%
Share option plan 29 10 08 Stochaskc 781 53 00 5175 344% 812% 420%
2008 Sharesave (5 yr plan) 24 4 08 Stochaslc 16 81 7200 6470 208% 514% 4 56%
2009 Sharesave (3 yr plan) 30 4 09 Stochastc 13 61 37 30 2092 54 2% 940% 203%
2008 Sharasava (5 yr plan) 30 4 09 Stochaslc 10 85 37 30 2092 452% 940% 285%
2010 Sharesaws (3 yr plan) 23 4 10 Stochastic 2077 50 50 4124 §577% 317T% 202%
2010 Sharesava (5 yr plan) 23 4 10 Stochastic 2066 50 50 41 24 481% 317% 288%
Retention Plan (2 yr) 15 12 10 Black-Scholes 66 68 7000 - 58B1% 243% 115%
Retention Plan (3 yr) 16 12 10 Black-Scholes 6508 7000 - 594% 243% 162%
SELTIP 15 09 11 Black-Scholes 2376 3388 - 54 0% 526% 057%
Retention Plan 30 12 11 Black-Scholes 27 65 a0 56 - 520% 604% 049%

For the Share Oplion plan 2004, the expected volalility is based on historical volatility over a 20 month period
from tha date of listing to November 2005 For the Share Option plan 2008, the expected volatlity Is based on
historical volatility over a 54 month period from the date of listing until October 2008 For the Sharesave plan
and the Retention Plan, expected volatility Is based on tistorical volatility for a penod commensurate with the
expected terms of the options to the grant date

The risk-free rate of return is the yield on UK Gilts consistent with the option life

For the SELTIP, as grants of restricted shares have been made during the year, fair valuas with respect to the
2012 tranche of awards have been finallsed in 2013 The estimated charge recogrised in 2012 with respect to
this award has been adjusted In 2013 alongside the recognition of the current year's expense for this award to
reflect the finalisation of the falr values As restricted shares have not yet been granted with respect to the 2013
tranche of awards under this scheme, the fair valuation has been estimaled based on the latest available
information  The resulting share-based payment expense is being recognised from the start of the performance
period (1 July 2012) o the end of the vesting period

The total charge for 2013 relating to employee share based payment plans was £0 3m (2012 £0 3m), all of
which related to equity-setlled share based payment transactions
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24 NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Reconcliation of operating profit/(loss) for the year to net cash inflow/{oulflow) from operating activities

2013 2012 2013 2012
Group Group Company Company
£m £m Em £m
{Loss)/profit for the year (38 4) 13 (13 8) (18}
Adjustments for
Tax 10 14 - -
Depreciatton 06 07 - -
Amorusation ofintangibles 46 29 - -
Accelerated amortisation of software (included within
exceplional cosis) 02 01 - -
Impairment of goodwlll {included within in exceplionals) 392 - 122 -
IFRS 3 (R) earn-out (included within exceplional costs) 43 11 - -
Earnout Provision release
(included within exceptionat costs) (54) - - -
Interest expense 12 06 - 03
lAS 39 discounting unwind i3 - - -
Share option charge 03 03 0.1 a1
Profit on disposal - (0 3) - -
Changes in working capital
(excluding effecls of acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries)
(increase)/decrease in inventores (0 9) 02 - -
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (0 8) 29 {6 0) {13)
increase/{decrease) in trade and other payables 04 (36) 02 (28)
Increase in deferred income 18 05 - -
{Dacrease)increase in provisions 01) 02 - -
Cash generated from/(used in) operating aclnvites 93 83 (73) (61)
Analysls of changes in net debt
At1 July At 30 June
Group 2012 Cashflow 2013
£m £m
Cash and cash equivalenis 14 653 (z20) 33
Bosrowings 15 (12 5) (103) (22.8)
Net debt (7.2) {12.3) (19 5)
At 1 July At 30 June
Company 2012 Cashflow 2013
£m £m
Borrowings 15 (12 5) (10 3) (22.8)
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Subsldiaries acquired

Proportion of

Date of voting equity
acquisition Interest acquired
Year-ended 30 June 2013
E-consultancy com Limited 11.07 2012 100%
Year-ended 30 June 2012
Investment Platform Limited (IPL) 19 08 2011 100%
Venture Business Research Limited (VBR) 08 12 2011 100%
The Profile Group {UK) Limited {Profile) 20022012 100%

On 11 July 2012, the Group acqured the entre issued share capitai of E-consultancy.com Limited
("Econsultancy"} a business which provides information, training and evants to digital marketing businesses in
the UK, USA, Middla East and Far East and will complement the Group's Marketing division Initial cash
consideration of £11 9m was paid on completion of the acquisition, net of a working capital adjustment of £0 1m
Daferred consideration is payable based on 75 times the Econsultancy's EBITDA for the year ending
December 2015, subject to a maximum total consideration {including the initial cash consideration) of £50 Om
initial forecasts indicated that the deferred consideration payment wou!ld be approximately £18 Om which, after
discounting, was initially recognised at a farr value of £11.6m As a resuit of post-acquisition trading, this was
downgraded to an expected deferred consideration payment of £10.5m, discounted to £7 6m The change in
provision has been recognised in the Siatement of Comprehensive Income in accordance with IFRS 3 {(R).

The amounts recognised In respect of the identifiable assels acquired and habilities assumed are as set out in
the table below The provisional fair values disclosed In the Group's half year results have been amended to
reflect a £2 Om deferred tax liability in relation to the intangible assets This has resulted in a corresponding
increase to goodwill

2013
£m

(dentfiable intangible fixed assels 91
Cash and cash equivalents 05
Trade and other raceivables 29
Trade and other payables (2.8)
Defarred tax Liabilty (20)
Total idenlfiable net assets 68
Goodwill 16 7
Totat consideraton 235
Satsfied by
Cash consideration 119
Contingent consideration 1186
Total consideration transferred 235
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition
Cash consideration 19
Less cash and cash equivalenis acquired (0 5)

114
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Acquisition-related costs amounting to £0.7m have been excluded from the consideration and recognised as an
expense in the current year as an exceptional cost within the nel operating expenses line item on the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Goodwill arose on the acquisition in relation to the benefit of the assembled workforce and expected operating
synergies Thesge benefits are not recegnised separately from goodwill as they do not meet the recognition
criteria for identifiable assets

The goodwlll arising on the acquisition has been allocated to the Marketing segment, as that segment Is
expected fo benefit from the synergies of the business combination

Econsultancy contributed £9 3m to revenue and £1 0m to the Group's profit for the period belween the
acquisition and the balance sheet date

The business combination was effectiva from 11 July 2012, therefore the Group revenue of £72 0m and
EBITDA of £12 9m would not be materially different had the combination taken place at 1 July 2012,

During the year-ended 30 June 2012 the Group acquired the entire issued share capital of Invastment Platform
Limited (IPL), Venture Business Research Limited (VBR) and The Proflle Group (UK) Limited (Profile) There
have been no changes to the falr values recognised the financlal statements for the year then ended
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Categorles of financlal instruments

2013 2012
£m £m
FAnanclal assets

Cash and bank halances a3 53
Loans and recelvables 127 107
16 0 16 0

Financlal liabliities
Amortised cost 318 202

The Group's activities expose It to a varlety of financial risks currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and capital nsk The following note describes the role that financial instruments have had during the year
ended 30 June 2013 in the management of the Group’s financial risks

Currency risk

Substantially all the Group's net assels are located and substantially all revenue and adjusted EBITDA 1
generated in the United Kingdom and consequently foreign exchangs risk is imited The results of the Group
are not currently sensitive to movements in currency rates.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets bul Is exposed to interest rate nisk as W borrows funds at
floating interest rates  In accordance with Group policy, this risk may be managed by the use of interest rale
swap conlracts as cash flow hedges Hedging aclivities are evaluated regularly to align interest rate views and
risk appetite with the hedging requirements of the Group's revolving credit facility. The Group did not enter into
any hedging transactions during the year (2012 none} and, as at 30 June 2013, the only floating rate to which
the Group is exposed was LIBOR

The Group's exposure to interest rates on financlal assets and financial liabities 15 detalled in the liquidily risk
sectton of this note

Credit risk

Credit risk 1s managed on a group basis Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks
and financial institutions, and credit exposures to customers including outstanding recelvables and committed
transactions For banks and financlal institutions, only independently rated parties with a minimum raling of 'A’
are accepted For customers, the Group's risk confrol assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into
account its financial position, past experlence and other factors The directors consider the maximum credit nsk
to which the Group is exposed Is the sum of cash and cash equivalents per note 14 and the receivables balance
per note 13 The Group does not consider it is subject to any significant concentrations of credit nisk

Liguldity risk

Liquidily risk is the nsk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due
Throughout the year-ended 30 June 2013, and for the foreseeable future, tha Group is expected to be in a net
borrowings positien The Group manages liquidily nsk by maintaining adequate reserves and working caplital
credit facilities, and by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows A summary of the undrawn
faciities the Group has at its disposal to further reduce liquidity nisk Is shown below The total facility available
reduces by £2 5m each year until it reaches £30.0m during the year to 30 June 2016

2013 2012
£m £m

Expiring later than one year and less than 5 years
Loan Facility 141 275
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Liquidity risk {continued)

Tha following tables detail the Group's remaining financial maturity for its financial liabilities

Less than
Book value Falr value 1 year 2-5years
£Em £m £m £m
At 30 June 2013
Financial liabitities
Variable interest rate instruments 228 228 - 228
Fixed interest rate iInstruments 03 03 02 01
231 231 02 229
At 30 June 2012
Financial habilites
Vanable interest rate instruments 125 125 - 126
Fixed interestrate instrumenis 05 05 02 03
130 130 02 128

The book value of primary financial instruments approximates to fair valus where the mnstrument 1s on a short
matunty or where they bear interest at rates approximate to the market

All trade and other payables are due in one year or less, or on demand

Capiltal risk
The Group manages Its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising return to slakehclders as well as sustaining the future development of the business.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes borrowings {note 15) and cash and cash
equivalents (note 14), and equity attributable to owners of the parent, comprising issued share capital (note 21),
other reserves and relained earnings

The Group continues to benefit from Its banking facilities agreed during 2012 which features both a working
capital facility, to assist in managing the Group's iquidity risk, and an acquisition faciiity, to support the Group's
acquisition strategy The facility, available for a period of 4 years, allows for a maximum drawdown of £40 Om,
£30 Om of which can be utllised for funding acquisitron activity and £10 Om of which can be utilised for working
capital purposes Interest is calculated on LIBOR plus a margin dependent on the level of outstanding
drawdowns, which 1s re-measured quarterly in ine with covenant testing

The Group's borrowings are subject to financial covenants tested quarterly At 30 June 2013 all of these
covenants were achieved.

Page 103




Centaur Media plc

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

27 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS - MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS

2013 2012
£m £m
Commitments under non-cancetlable operating
leases payable
Within 1 year 27 24
Later than one year and less than 5 years 36 49
After 5 years 10 09
73 82
Commitments recelvable under non-cancellable
subleases
Within 1 year 06 06
Later than one year and less than 5 years - 06
After 5 years - -
08 12
28 PENSION SCHEMES

The Group contributes to individual and collective money purchase pension schemes in respect of Directors and
employees once they have completed the requisite period of service Thae charge for the year in respect of
these pension schemes, which are deflned contribution schemes, 15 shown In note § Included within other
payables s an amount of £0 Tm (2012 £0.1m) payable in respect of the money purchase penslon schemes
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29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Group
Key management compensation is disclosed in note 5

As at 30 June 2013, the Group was owed a total of £45,000 by GP Simidian, a director of Perfect Information
Limited, {2012 £62,000 owed by GP Simidian and MJP McLaren) arising from unpaid share subscriptions
relating to their minority shareholding in that company

There were no other matenal related party transactions

Company
During the year, adminislrative expenses and interast were recharged from subsldiary companies as follows:

2013 2012

£m £m

Recharge of administrative expenses 01 0.1
Interest payable 03 03
04 04

The balances outstanding with subslidiary companies are disclosed in notes 13 and 16

Audit Exemption

For the year-ended 30 June 2013 the Company has provided a guarantee pursuant to sections 479A-C of the
Companies Act 2006 over the liabilihes of the following subsidiaries and as such they are exempt from the
requirements of the Act relating to the audit of individual accounts for this financial year

Name Company Outstanding
Number liablllties
Ceantaur Communications Limited 01595235 158
Centaur Consumer Exhibitions Limited 07276298 23
Chiron Communicatons Limited 01081808 31
Ascent Publishing Limited 02561341 13
Pro-Talk Limited 03939119 -
Taxbnefs Holdings Limited 03572069 -
Taxbriefs Limited 01247331 04
Investment Platforms Limited 06439194 07
Venture Business Research Limited 05663936 02
The Profile Group {(UK) Limited 05243851 13
Mayfield Publishing Limited 02034820 04
Your Business Magazne Limited 01707331 41
Moorgate Nominees Limited 00233730 -
Synergy Software Solutions Limited 02652312 -
Synergy Real Time Systems Limited 02652315 -
Perfect Information (Asia Pacific) Limited 728013 -
Synsoft Group Limited 02652471 -
Synergy Software Limited 02095108 -
Centaur Publishing Limited 02752562 -
The Awareness Group Limited 04301840 -
Marketing Week Communications Limited 03119804 -
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